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COMPANY OVERVIEW | Features

The Company is a closed-ended investment company incorporated and registered in Guernsey on 20 April 2010 with registration number
51774. The Company is governed under the provisions of the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 (as amended) (the "Law"), and the
Registered Collectve Investment Scheme Rules and Guidance 2021 issued by the Guernsey Financial Services Commission ("GFSC"). It
is a non-cellular company limited by shares and has been declared by the GFSC o be a registered closed-ended callective investment
scheme. The Company trades on the Specialist Fund Segment ("SFS") of the London Stock Exchange ("LSE").

The Company is a member of the Associaion of Investment Companies (the "AlC") and is classified within the Debt - Loans & Bonds
Category.

The Company's primary objective is o provide investors with atractve risk-adjusted returns through long-biased, opportunistc exposure
stressed, distressed and special situation creditrelated investments while seeking to limit downside risk by, amongst other things, focusing on
senior and senior secured debt with both collateral and structural protection.

Investment management services are provided o the Company by Neuberger Berman Investment Advisers LLC (the "AIFM") and
Neuberger Berman Europe Limited (the "Manager"), collectively te "Invesiment Manager". The AIFM is responsible for risk management
and discrefionary management of the Company's Portiolio and the Manager provides, amongst other things, certain administrative services
fo the Company.

As at 31 December 2024 the Company's share capital comprised the following1:

Ordinary Share Class ("NBDD")
15,382,770 Ordinary Shares, none of which were held in teasury.

Extended Life Share Class ("NBDX")
38,731,819 Extended Life Shares, none of which were held in freasury.

New Global Share Class ("NBDG")
25,123,440 New Global Shares, none of which were held in reasury.

For the purposes of eficient portolio management, the Company has established a number of wholly-owned subsidiaries domiciled in
Luxembourg. All references to the Company in this document refer to the Company together with ifs wholly-owned subsidiaries.

The Company currently conducts ifs affairs so that the shares issued by the Company can be recommended by Independent Financial
Advisers to ordinary refail investors in accordance with the Financial Conduct Authority's ("FCA") rules in relation to non-mainstream pooled
investment ("NMPI") products and intends to continue to do so for the foreseeable future.


http://www.rns-pdf.londonstockexchange.com/rns/7170G_1-2025-4-29.pdf

The Company's shares are excluded from the FCA's restrictions which apply to NMPI products.

Ordinary Shares
LSE ISIN code: GGOOBDFZ6F78
Bloomberg code: NBDD: LN

Extended Life Shares
LSE ISIN code: GGOOBPNZ1C58
Bloomberg code: NBDX:LN

New Global Shares
LSE ISIN code: GGOOBTLMK410
Bloomberg code: NBDG:LN

Legal Entity Identifier
YRFO7WKOU3V511VFX790

www.nbddifcom
1 In addition the Company has two Class A Shares inissue. Further informetion is provided in the Capital Structure secfion of this report below.
COMPANY OVERVIEW | Capital Structure

Capital Structure

The Company's share capital consists of tree different share classes, all of which are in the harvest period: the Ordinary Share Class; the
Extended Life Share Class; and the New Global Share Class. These share classes each have diferent capital return profles and, in one
instance a diferent geographical remit. In addition, the Company has two Class A Shares in issue. While the Company's share classes are
all now in harvest, refurning capital to shareholders, the Company's corporate umbrella ifself has an indefinite life to allow for flexibility for the
Company t add new share classes if demand, market opportunifies and shareholder approval supported such a move, although the
Company has no current plans to create new share classes. Each share class is considered in urn below.

NBDD was established at the Company's launch on 10 June 2010 with a remit fo invest in the global distressed debt market with a focus on
North America. The invesiment period of NBDD expired on 10 June 2013.

Voting rights: Yes

Denomination: US Dollars

Hedging: Portfolio hedged to US Dollars
Authorised share capital: Unlimited

Par value: Nil

Avote was held ata class meeting of NBDD shareholders on 8 April 2013 where the majority of shareholders voted in favour of a proposed
extension.

Following this meefing and with the NBDD shareholders' approval of the extension, on 9 April 2013 a new Class, NBDX, was created and the
NBDX Shares were issued to 72% of iniial NBDD investors who elected to convert their NBDD Shares to NBDX Shares. NBDX had a remit
foinvestin the global distressed debt market with a focus on North America. The investment period of NBDX expired on 31 March 2015.

Voting rights: Yes
Denomination: US Dollars
Hedging: Portfolio hedged to US Dollars


http://www.nbddif.com

Authorised share capital: Unlimited
Par value: Nil

NBDG was created on 4 March 2014 and had a remit fo invest in the global distressed market with a focus on Europe and North America.
The investment period of NBDG expired on 31 March 2017.

Voiing rights: Yes

Denomination: Pound Sterling
Hedging: Unhedged portolio
Authorised share capital: Unlimited

Par value: Nil

The Class A Shares are held by a trustee pursuant o a purpose frust established under Guernsey law. Under the terms of the Trust Deed the
Trustee holds the Class A Shares for the purpose of exercising the right o receive nofice of general meefings of the Company but the Trustee
shall only have the right fo atiend and vote at general meefings of the Company when there are no other Shares of the Company in issue.

Voting rights: No

Denomination: US Dollars

Authorised share capital: 10,000 Class A Shares
Par value: US Dollar 1
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Business Model

The principal activity of the Company is o carry out business as an investment company. The Directors do not envisage any changes in this
actvity for the foreseeable future.

The chart below sefs outthe ownership, organisational and investment structure of the Company.
INVESTMENT STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY

[For Investment Structure of the Company, click on, or paste the following link into your web browser, to view page 1 in the
associated PDF document]

hitp://www.ms-pdf.londonstockex change.com/ms/7170G 1-2025-4-29.pdf
1 Further information on the Company's capital structure can be found above.
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Investment Objective

The Company's primary objective is to provide investors with atractve risk-adjusted refurns through long-biased, opportunistic exposure o
stressed, distressed and special situation creditrelated investments while seeking to limit downside risk by, amongst other things, focusing on
senior and senior secured debt with both collateral and structural protection.

Investment Policy

The investment period of each share class has expired. During te investment period, the Investment Manager sought, in accordance with
the Investment Policy, o identfy mis-priced or otherwise overlooked securities or assets that had the potental to produce atractve absolute
relurns while seeking to limit downside risk through collateral and structured protection where possible.

The Ordinary Shares, Extended Life Shares and New Global Shares (collectively the "Portiolios") are biased toward stressed and distressed
debt securifies secured by hard asset collateral in accordance with the Investment Policy. When investing on behalf of the Company, the
Investment Manager focused on companies with significant tangible assefs which were judged likely to maintain long-term value trough a
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restructuring. The Investment Manager avoided "assetlight' companies, as their values tend to depreciate in distressed scenarios, and also
aimed o concenfrate on companies with stressed balance sheefs whose low implied enterprise value muliples, ofen calculated using
currently depressed cash flows, ofiered a discount to comparable market valuations.

Distressed debt generally refers 1o the financial obligaions of a company that is either already in default, under bankruptcy protection, or in
distress and heading foward default Distressed debt ofien trades at a significant discount fo its par value and may present investors with
compeliing opportuniies to proft if there is a recovery in the business. Typically, when a company experiences financial distress or flles for
bankruptcy protection, the original debt holders ofien sell their debt securities or claims o a new set of investors ata discount These investors
ofen try to infuence the process by which the issuer restructures ifs obligations or implements a plan o turn around its operafions. These
investors may also inject new capital into a distressed company in the form of debt or equity in order to prevent the company from going into
liquidation or o aid the company in carrying out a restructuring plan. Investors in distressed debt typically must not only assess the issuer's
ability to improve its operations but also whether the restructuring process is likely o resultin @ meaningful recovery fo the investors' class of
claims.

Distressed debt can be performing or non-performing. Performing debtis defined as debt that maintains its contractual obligaions relating to
interest and/or principal payments and can be debt that has yet to default or even debt that is under bankruptcy protecion. Non-performing
debtis defined as debt that does not confinue o meet s financial obligaions.

There are several different strategies related o investing in distressed debt These strategies difier mainly in the types of securities tat
investors purchase, the life of a fund and its invesiment period, and a fund's expected refurns. Four strategic categories include: (i)
senior/senior secured debt strategies; (i) control/private equity strategies; (i) junior debt strategies; and (iv) capital structure arbirage
strategies. During the investment periods of the Portiolios, the Invesiment Manager focused on implementing a senior/senior secured debt
strategy in which itinvested primarily in secured debt with strong collateral value and structural protection. The Investment Manager has also
invested in control positions and non-control positions with the objective of acquiring a blocking position on behalf of the Portolios.

Investing in secured debt at the top of the capital structure is, in the opinion of the Investment Manager, fowards the more conservative end of
the distressed debt strategy risk spectrum due o the support from the value of the underlying collateral. Additionally, secured debt holders
often have the ability o foreclose on the assefs securing their claim and to drive the restructuring process. The typical holding period for
investments in this type of strategy is atleast six months and can be more than three years.

Typical Life Cycle of a Distressed Debt Investment
[For Investment Structure of the Company, click on, or paste the following link into your web browser, to view page 2 in the

associated PDF document]
http://www.ms-pdflondonstockexchange.com/ms/7170G_1-2025-4-29.pdf

Further information on the Company's invesiment process can be found in the Company's most recent prospeciuses which are available on
the Company's website at www.nbddif.com under the "Investor Information” ab.

1 Negotiations can take place within bankruptcy or creditors can negotiate with the company o agree on a prepackaged benkruptcy whereby the plan of
reorganisation is negoliated before the compeny files for benkrupicy protection (this has become more common).

Distributions to Shareholders
Income

In order to beneft fom an exemption to the United Kingdom ("UK") offshore fund rules, all income from the Company's Portlio (after
deduction of reasonable expenses) must be paid o investors. To meet this requirement the Company will pay out by way of dividend, in
respect of each share class, all netincome received on investments of the Company atributable to such share class, as appropriate.

Itis not antcipated that income from the Portiolios will be material and therefore any income distributions by way of dividend will be on an ad-
hoc basis. However, the Company monitors the need fo distribute such income annually (less allowable expenses under the NMPI rules) in
order o continue to be excluded from the FCA's restrictions which apply to non-mainstream investment products. The exact amount of such
income distribution by way of dividend in respect of any class of shares will be variable depending on the amounts of income received by te
Company attributable to such share class and will only be paid in accordance with applicable law at the relevant ime, including the Companies
(Guernsey) Law, 2008 (as amended) (the "Law") and, in particular, will be subject to the Company passing the solvency test contained in the
Law at the relevant ime. The amount of income distributions by way of dividend paid in respect of one class of shares may be diferent from
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that ot another class.

Capital

Following the expiry of the Portiolios' investment periods, the capital proceeds atfributable to the corresponding share class as determined by
the Directors and in accordance with the arficles ofincorporation (the "Arficles"), will, at such fimes and in such amounts as the Directors shall

in their absolute discretion determine, be distributed to shareholders of that class pro rafa to their respective holdings of the relevant shares.

Any capital refurn will only be made by the Company in accordance with the Articles of the Company and applicable law at the relevant ime,
including the Law (and, in particular, will be subject to the Company passing the solvency test contained in the Law at the relevant ime).

Towards the end of the Portiolios' respective harvest periods, a residual amount will be refained in accordance with regulatory requirements
untl such ime as the relevant share class may be liquidated or ifs assets otherwise disposed of at the discretion of the Board.

Gearing

The Company will notemploy leverage or gearing for invesiment purposes. The Company may, from time fo ime, use borrowings for share
buybacks and short-term liquidity purposes, including bridging purposes, prior o the sale of investments. Save for such bridging borrowings
the Directors will restrict borrowing, with respect o each share class, o an amount not exceeding 10 percent of the NAV of the share class at

the tme of drawdown.

The Company does not currently have any borrowings. Derivatives may be used for the purposes of eficient portolio management and o
hedge risk within the Portilios. In additon, from tme to fime the Company may also investin such derivatives for investment purposes.
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Financial Highlights

Key Figures
ORDINARY  EXTENDED LIFE NEW GLOBAL
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024 SHARE CLASS SHARECLASS  SHARE CLASS' AGGREGATED
Net Asset Value ("NAV") ( millions)
116 %9 16.0 635
NAV per Share
perStere() 0.7567 09271 0.6354
Share Price ()
0.6200 0.7000 04008
NAV per Share (£)
05073
Share Price (£)
0.3200
Premium /(Discount) to NAV per Share
(17.96%) (24.50%) (36.98%)
Portfolio of Distressed Investments ( millions)
63 152 152 %7
Cash and Cash Equivaents ( millions)
49 203 02 254
Total Expense Ratio ("TER')2
(TER) 1.43% 1.45% 234%
Ongoing Charges 3
b 1.37% 1.38% 228%
ORDINARY  EXTENDED LIFE NEW GLOBAL
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 SHARE CLASS SHARECLASS  SHARE CLASS' AGGREGATED
Net Asset Value ("NAV") ( millions)
124 456 21 80.1
NAV per Shere
per Stere ) 0.8071 1.0312 0.79%4

Shere Price ()
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NAV per Share (£)
- - 06239 -
Share Price (£)
- - 031 -
Prermium /(Discount) to NAV per Share
(14.51%) (48.60%) (50.32%) -
Portiolio of Distressed Investments ( millions)
74 20 215 609
Cash and Cash Equivalents ( millions)
43 1.9 03 165
Total Expense Ratio ('TER')?
1.28% 1.38% 221% -
Ongoirg Cherges ®
1.2% 1.31% 217% -

1 Sited in US Dollars, the £ price as at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023 converted to US Dollars using respective year end exchange rates.

2 The TERs represent the operating expenses, as required by US Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ("US GAAP'), expressed as a percentage of
average net assefs.

3Inlheyearto31 December 2024, the Company's Ongoing Charges were 1.62%. This figure is based on an expense figure for the year to 31 December 2024
of 1,263,616. This figure, which has been prepared in accordance with AIC guidance represents the Company's operating expenses, excluding finance costs
payable, expressed as a percentage of average net assefs. Effective 18 March 2021, the Investment Manager had waived its entifement to all fees from the
Company. The Ongoing Charges by share class are disclosed above.

Summary of Value in Excess of Original Capital Invested

ORDINARY EXTENDED LIFE NEW GLOBAL
AS AT 31 DECEVBER 2024 SHARECLASS ()  SHARECLASS()  SHARECLASS (£)
Origid Capitel Invested (124500,202) (359,350,794) (10,785,785)
Toiel Capital Distibuions 129,627,304 290,562,041 5,938,252
Total Income Distibuions ! 3166835 21,9900 5,682,362
Distibtions as % of Originl Capitd 107% 8% 5%
Toial Buybacks - 12112379 10,924,963
NAV 11,624,114 3B,907,610 12,746,359
Toial of NAV Plus Capi and Income Relumed ("Value') 1441833 38,931,990 8,291,996
Ve in Excess of Origind Capital Invested 19,918,141 9572166 (28493,349)
Value as % of Original Capitdl Invested 16% 108% 74%

ORDINARY EXTENDED LIFE NEW GLOBAL
AS AT 31 DECEVBER 2023 SHARECLASS ()  SHARECLASS()  SHARECLASS (£)
Origirdl Capitdl Invested (124,500,.202) (359,359,794) (110,785,785)
Toie Capitdl Distibuions 129,627,304 294,070,076 51,444,766
Toi Income Distibutions ! 3166,8% 20,6%,2% 5,070,285
Distribuiions as % of Original Capitd 107% 8% 51%
Toil Buybacks - 12112379 10,924,963
NAV 12415231 45,614,485 17,358,085
Toial of NAV Plus Capi and Income Retumed ("Value') 145,200,460 372,49,1% 84,798,049
Value in Excess of Origindl Capi Invested 20,709,258 13,132,401 (25.97,7%)
Value as % of Origind Capitdl Invested 17% 104% 7%

1By way of dividend
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Chairman's Statement

. | am pleased i be able to reportthat, after a dificult period, progress has been made in realising assefs as
. demonstrated by the returns of capital that have been made. Two assets were exited since the year end but,
4k because of the requirement to holdback, a distribution could only be made to the holders of Global class

¥ AhAran
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f“ | am optimistic that further progress can be made in the coming months and it is our expectation o make

substantial realisafion of asses of all classes prior o allow for the liquidation of classes thus allowing us

release the cash that has fo be held back. This is likely fo be a combinafion of a final redemption prior fo liquidafion followed by distributions
made by the appointed Liquidator. We will confinue to report exits and cash receipts by way of market announcements.

Company Performance

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had refurned a fofal of 132.8m or 107% of NBDD investors' original capital of 124.5m, 333.0m or
93% of NBDX investors' original capital of 359.4m and £69.5m or 63% of NBDG investors' original capital of £110.8m. Currenty we are in
whatwe hope to be the final stages of harvesting a number ofinvestments and we will keep investors informed as they occur. Itis our infenion
o fully harvest NBDD during the coming months, subject to market condions. The Board continues to monitor all costs o ensure tat they
are appropriate as we are conscious that shareholders may be concerned about the impact of costs on a reducing portiolio during the harvest
period. We would therefore remind shareholders that with efiect from 18 March 2021 our investment manager agreed to waive all future fees.

Annual General Meeting ("AGM") Results

While all of the resolutions tabled at our Annual General Meeting held on 26 June 2024 were passed | would note the significant number of
votes against buybacks. As previously mentioned the Board does not expect to carry out any buybacks preferring to make all returns of
capital via share redemptions. However, your Board thought it prudent to keep this option open lest an unexpected situation arose where a
buyback would be extremely advaniageous o the remaining shareholders. Following the vote, a similar resolution will not be placed before the
next AGM. My own re-election also received some opposition which is easily understood given my unanticipated extended tenure. | am
grateful thatmy Board colleagues remain supportive of my continuing in ofice and that this view was supported by over 80% of the votes cast
I look forward o confinuing to work with all my colleagues to secure the earliest possible winding up of our Company.

Board Composition, Independence and Diversity

Due to the expected wind up of the fund itis not considered appropriate or pracical to refresh the board at present and we believe the results of
the relevant AGM resolutions endorse this approach.

Distributions

During 2024, we made further progress on the realisation of assefs. Following the receipt of proceeds from a refurn of capital of an Oil & Gas
invesiment the Board resolved on 7 November 2024 to make capital distribuions of 0.1242 and £0.0537 per share in respect of the NBDX
and NBDG classes respectively. These distributions were made by a compulsory pro rata redemption of shares held as at 26 November
2024 with payment being made on 10 December 2024.

The Board was also pleased to announce an income distribution by way of dividend which was paid on 9 December 2024.

We will continue o put our income distribuon policy to a shareholder vote at each annual general meeting. | would like to remind
shareholders that such distribufions occur on an ad-hoc basis and are not expected to be either material or equal for each share class.

Outlook

Since | commenced drafting this statement we have seen political developments that have caused great uncertainty in global markefs and itis
dificult to foresee how these will pan outand the degree to which they will, yet again, delay the return of capital. However, our goal confinues o
be to commence the winding up of your Company in the coming months in order to release funds o shareholders, even if this means that
they will have a residual asset thatis a receivable rather than a listed security.

It had long been our expectation that the Ordinary class of shares would be the frst o commence the final wind-up process followed by the
Extended share class and then the New Global share class but we will retain the option to consolidate this approach info a single event if we
believe that to be in the best interest of shareholders.

As is normally the case with investment companies, as opposed o those with commercial undertakings, this does not currenty have any
material impact on the Company's ability to confinue as a going concern or o remain viable. However, the whole process must be managed
in a way tat ensures compliance with UK regulaions. This means that the final 10% of the total refurn (NAV plus cumulatve distributions) in
respect of any class of participaiing shares in the Company will be returned to shareholders with a final compulsory redemption of all of the
outstanding shares of that class. The Global class will continue to distribute unfil its net assets are reduced to approximately £8m. The cash
associated with these share classes may, in some instances, need to remain in underlying corporate vehicles while tax and other maters



relating o those vehicles are concluded. We will keep investors appraised of developments in respect of the remaining assefs.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our longstanding shareholders for your support of our Company. We look forward to updating you
further on investment realisations throughout tis year.

John Hallam
Chairman
29 April 2025
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Investment Manager's Report
Ordinary Share Class
Summary

The NAV per share decreased by 6.37% for the year ended 31 December, 2024 primarily due o a lower value in a containers & packaging
investment that reported weaker earnings and a reduction in the surface transport asset

Portfolio Update

NBDD ended the year with a NAV per share of 0.7557 compared t 0.8071 atend of 2023. At 31 December 2024, 50% of NBDD's NAV was
invested in distressed assefs, and 4m in US Government securiies which represented a further 50% of NAV, with a minimal amount cash
net of payables (see table below). Cash balances will coniinue to increase as assefs are realised, subject o variatons in collateral cash, but
as noted previously cannot be distributed untl the final liquidation of the share class. The portolio consisted of 3 issuers across five sectors.
The largest sector concentraions were in surface fransporiation, containers & packaging and commercial morigage and lodging and
casinos.

CASH ANALYSIS

Belance Sheet - Cash 49m
Collatera cash (31m)
Other payables (0.1m)
Total available cash 1.7m

Significant Price Movement during 2024 (more than 1% of NBDD NAV or approximately 120,000)

TOTAL RETURN
INDUSTRY INSTRUMENT (US DOLLARS MILLIONS) COMMENT
Containers & packaging Private Equity 0.7) Earnings miss
Surface Transport Total Return Swap (0.4) Delayed exit

Bxits
During the year, we had two exits. The fofal number of exits since inception in NBDD is 53, with a tofal refurn of 29.3m.

Distributions

To date, 132.8m or 107% of original capital has been distributed o investors in the form of capital distributions via redemplions and income
dividends. Total value to investors including NAV and all distributions paid is 144.4m (116% of original capital). For regulatory reasons, the
final 10% of the total refurn (NAV plus cumulative distribuions) in respect of any class of participaing shares in NBDDIF will be refurned to
shareholders with a final compulsory redempfion of all of the outstanding shares of that class. The next distribution for NBDD will be the final
distribution o shareholders and will wind down the share class. Our current expectation is to wind down the share class during the coming
months. We will continue to update investors as we gain clarity on the realisations.

Extended Life Share Class
Summary

The NAV per share decreased by 10.1% for the year ended 31 December, 2024. The reduction to NAV was the result of weaker earnings in
a container and packaging investment, a delayed exit in a surface transport asset, an exit that occurred at a lower than expect value in a



surface transport asset, offset partially by an exitin an oil and gas investment above NAV.
Portfolio Update

NBDX ended the year with a NAV per share of 0.9271 compared to 1.0312 atend of 2023. At 31 December 2024, 61% of NBDX's NAV was
invested in distressed assets, and 2m in US Government securities which represented a further 39% of NAV with a minimal amount of cash
net of payables (see table below). Cash balances will confinue to increase as assefs are realised, subject o variations in collateral cash, but
as noted previously not all cash can be distributed untl the final liquidation of the share class. The NAV per share increase during the year
was principally driven by an increase in value of a packaging investment and two surface fransport investments, offset by a decrease in value
of an automobile components investment The NBDX portiolio consists of 6 issuers across 5 sectors. The largest sector concentrations were
in surface fransportation, commercial mortgage, containers & packaging, lodging & casinos.

CASH ANALYSIS

Balance Sheet - Cash 18.9m
Collaterdl cash (6.6m)
Other payables (0.2m)
Total available cash 121m

Significant Price Movements during 2024 (more than 1% of NBDX NAV or 360,000)

TOTAL RETURN
INDUSTRY INSTRUMENT (USD MILLIONS) COMMENT
Oil & Gas Private Equity 0.6 Sale above NAV
Commercial Mortgage Bank Debt Investments (0.4) Indications of interest below NAV, adjusted mark
Surface Transport Total Return Swap (22) Delayed exit
Surface Transport Bank Debt Investments (1.2) Exitin 1Q25, adjusted mark
Containers & Packaging Private Equity (1.8) Earnings miss
Bxits

In2024 we had two exits. This brought the fofal number of exits since inception in NBDX o 73 with tofal refurn of 37.8m.
Distributions

During 2024 NBDX made distribuions of 6.1m. The fofal distributions 1o date (dividends, redemptions and buy-backs) amount o 333m or
93% of original capital. Total value to investors including NAV and all distributions paid is 368.9m or 103% of original capital. For regulatory
reasons, the final 10% of fofal refurn in respect of any class of parficipating shares in NBDDIF will be returned to shareholders with the final
compulsory redemption of all of the outstanding shares of that class. Our current expectation is to wind down the share class during the
coming year. We will confinue o update investors as we gain clarity on the realisafions.

New Global Share Class

Summary

The NAV per share decreased by 18.68% for the year ended 31 December 2024 primarily due to reduced value in our commercial
mortgage and surface transportation assefs ahead of expected exits in 1Q'25 at lower values.

Portfolio Update

NBDG ended the year with a NAV per share of £0.5073 compared o £0.6239 at the end of 2023. At 31 December 2024, 99% of NBDG's
NAV was invested in distressed assefs with 1% of cash net of payables (see table below). NAV per share decreased during the year
primarily due to currency fluctuation and to a reduction in value of a surface fransport invesiment and a commercial morfgage invesiment,
ofiset by an increase in value of a surface transport investment The portfolio consisted of 4 issuers across 5 sectors. The largest sector
concentrations were in lodging & casinos, commercial mortgage, surface fransportation and oil & gas.

CASH ANALYSIS

Balance Shest - Cash 0.2m
Other payables (0.1m)
Total available cash 0.1m

Sianificant Price Movements durina 2024 (more than 1% of NBDG NAV or £130.000)
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TOTAL RETURN
INDUSTRY INSTRUMENT (GBP MILLIONS) COMMENT
Oil & Gas Private Equity 0.2 Sale above NAV
Indications of interest below NAV,
Commercial Mortgage Bank Debt Investments (0.3) adjusted mark
Surface Transport Bank Debt Investments (0.9 Exitin 1Q125, adjusted mark

Bxits

During 2024 there was one exit. The fotal number of exits since inceplion is 33 with a tofal return of £ (10.4m). Detailed descriptions of the exit
are atthe end of this report

Distributions

During 2024, there were distribuions of £2.2m. The tofal distribuions o date (dividends, redempfions, and buy-backs) have been £69.5m or
62.8% of original capital. Total value to investors including NAV and all distributions paid is £82.3m or 74% of original capital. For regulatory
reasons, the final 10% of ofal return in respect of any class of participaing shares in NBDDIF will be refurned to shareholders with the final
compulsory redemption of all the outstanding shares of that class. Our current expectafion is to wind down the share class during the coming
year. We will continue to update investors as we gain clarity on the realisations.

Summary of Exits across all Share Classes

Exits experienced from incepfion to date were as follows:

NBDD 53 exits with a tial return 0f29.3m, IRR of 8% and ROR of 16%
NBDX 73 exits with a tial return of 37.8m, IRR 0f2% and ROR of 7%

NBDG 33 exits with a tofal return of £ (10.4) m, IRRT of (8)% and ROR of (8)%

The annualised internal rate of refurn ("IRR") is computed based on the actual dates of the cash flows of the security (purchases, sales,
interest and principal pay downs), calculated in the base currency of each portolio. The Rate of Return ("ROR") represents the change in
value of the security (capital appreciaion, depreciation, and income) as a percentage of the purchase amount The purchase amount can
include multiple purchases. Total Return represents the inception to date gain/loss on an investment

Exit A3 (Exit 33 for NBDG, Exit 52 for NBDD Exit 72 for NBDX)

CASHINVESTED ~ CASHRECEVED  TOTAL RETURN MONTHS
EXTA3  EXIT (MILLIONS) (MILLIONS) (MILLIONS) IRR ROR HELD
NBDX 7 %8 15.1 (21.7) @H%  (590% 131
NBDD ) 74 24 (47) %)% (3% 131
NBDG 3 £122 £39 (82 2%  (676)% 120

Exit A4 (Exit 73 for NBDX and Exit 53 for NBDD)

CASH INVESTED CASHRECHVED  TOTAL RETURN MONTHS
EXTA4  EXIT (MILLIONS) (MILLIONS) (MILLIONS) IRR ROR HELD
NBDX 73 200 25 (17.5 20.3% 8.5% 131
NBDD 53 1.6 02 (14 19.8% 874 % 131
Neuberger Berman Investment Advisers LLC Neuberger Berman Europe Limited
29 April 2025 29 April 2025
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Top 31 Holdings as at 31 December 2024

PURCHASED
HOLDING  SECTOR INSTRUMENT STATUS COUNTRY % OF NAV  PRIMARY ASSET
1 Surface Transport Trade Claim Defauited Brazil 26% Municipal Claim
2 Containers & Packagng ~ PostReorg Equity ~ PostReorg Luxembourg 16% Manufacturing Plant and Equipment
3 Containers & Packaging  PostReorg Equity ~ PostReorg Luxembourg 2% Manufecturing Plant and Equipment
Total “%

[For Investment Structure of the Company, click on, or paste the following link into your web browser, to view page 3 in the
associated PDF document]
http://www.ms-pdf.londonstockexchange.com/ms/7170G 1-2025-4-29.pdf

1 Ordrery Shere Class holds three investmerts by issuer.
2 s at 31 Deceber 2024 collderal pleciged is indluded in the Surface Transport Market Vale.

3Categtxisaﬁcxs determined by Neuberger Berman; percentages defermined by Neuberger Berman and U.S Bank Global Fund Services (Guemsey) Limited /
U.S. Bank Global Fund Services (Ireland) Limited as Administrator / Sub-Administrator to the Compeny. Surface Transport - Trade Claims have not been
included in the Sector breakdown chart

[For Investment Structure of the Company, click on, or paste the following link into your web browser, to view page 4 in the

associated PDF document]
:/[www.ms-pdf.londonstockexcl .com/ms/7170G 1-20254-29.

4Categcxisaﬂcrsdaerrrinedw Neuberger Berman and percentages determined by the Administrator, as a percentage of the net asset values as at 31 Decenrber
2024 and 31 Decermber 2023,

5 As at 31 Decerrber 2024 collaeral pledged is included in the Brazil Market Value.

Extended Life Share Class

Top 6! Holdings as at 31 December 2024

PURCHASED % OF
HOLDING ~ SECTOR INSTRUMENT STATUS COUNTRY NAV  PRIMARY ASSET
1 Surface Transport Trade Claim Defaulted Brezil 2%  Municipd Clam
2 Containers & Packaging  Post-Reorg Eqity Post-Reorg Luxembourg 13%  Manufacturing Plant and Equipment
3 Commercid Morigage Secured Loan Defaulted Netherlands 12%  Commercid Red Estete
4 Surface Transport Secured Loan Defaulted Spain 7%  Concession
5 Oil & Gas Post-Reorg Equity PostReorg us 2% Ethend Plant
6 Containers & Packaging ~ Post-Reorg Eqity Post-Reorg Luxembourg 2% Manufactring Plant and Equipment
Total 58%

[For Investment Structure of the Company, click on, or paste the following link into your web browser, to view page 5 in the
associated PDF document]
http://www.ms-pdf.londonstockexchange.com/ms/7170G 1-2025-4-29.pdf

1 Extended Share Class holds six investrents by issuer.
2 s at 31 Decermber 2024 collaeral pledged is included in the Surface Transport Market Vale.

3Catagorisations determined by Neuberger Bermen; percentages determined by Neuberger Bermen and U.S Bank Global Fund Services (Guemsey) Limited /
U.S. Bank Global Fund Sevices (Ireland) as Administrator / Sub-Administrator to the Compeny. Surface Transport - Trade Claims have not been included in
the Sector breskdown chart

[For Investment Structure of the Company, click on, or paste the following link into your web browser, to view page 6 in the
associated PDF document]


http://www.rns-pdf.londonstockexchange.com/rns/7170G_1-2025-4-29.pdf
http://www.rns-pdf.londonstockexchange.com/rns/7170G_1-2025-4-29.pdf
http://www.rns-pdf.londonstockexchange.com/rns/7170G_1-2025-4-29.pdf

hitp://www. ms-pdf londonstockex change. com/ms/7170G _1-2025-4-29, pdff

4Cdreg<x1'saﬁcrsdete‘ninedby Neuberger Berman and percentages determined by the Administrator, as a percentage of the net asset values as at 31 December
2024 and 31 Decerber 2023,

S As at 31 Decerrber 2024 collaeral pledged is included in the Brazil Market Value.

New Global Share Class

Top 41 Holdings as at 31 December 2024

PURCHASED % OF
HOLDING  SECTOR INSTRUMENT STATUS COUNTRY NAV PRIMARY ASSET
1 Larking & Casino E;‘ﬁi”&edm”/ PIVE o et Spain 4%  HslCasimo
2 Commercid Morigage Secured Loan Defaulted Netherlands 3% Commercid Redl Estate
3 Surface Transportation Secured Loan Defauited Spain 17% Legd Claim
4 Oil & Gas Private Equy Post-Reorg Us %% Ethanol Plant
Total 100%

[For Investment Structure of the Company, click on, or paste the following link into your web browser, to view page 7 in the
associated PDF document]
http://www.ms-pdf.londonstockexchange.comvms/7170G 1-2025-4-29.pdf

1 Global Share Class holds four investrerts by issuer

2 Categorisations determined by Neuberger Bemman; percentages determined by Neuberger Bemman and U.S Bank Global Fund Services (Guemsey)
Limited / U.S. Bark Global Fund Services (Ireland) Limited as Administrator / Sub-Administrator o the Compeny .

[For Investment Structure of the Company, click on, or paste the following link into your web browser, to view page 8 in the
associated PDF document]
1/ www. ms-pdf londonstockex .com/ms/7170G 1-20254-29,

3Categm'saﬁorsdeﬁmriredw Neuberger Berman and percentages determined by the Administrator, as a percentage of the net asset values as at 31 Decerrber
2024 and 31 Decermber 2023,
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Since 31 March 2017, the Portiolios have all been in their respective harvest period. As such this strategic reportis presented in the context of the
current positioning of the Portlios in their liecycle. The Company's corporate umbrella itself has an indefinite life to allow for flexibility for the
Company to add new share classes if demand, market opportunities and shareholder approval supported such a move, although the Company
has no current plans to create new share classes and the focus is on placing the Company into liquidation.

Principal and Emerging Risks and Risk Management

The Board is responsible for the Company's system of internal financial and operating controls and for reviewing its effeciveness. The Board uses
the Company's risk matrix as its core element in establishing the Company's system of internal financial and reporting controls. The Board has
carried out a robust assessment of the Company's emerging and principal risks and uncertaintes including those that would threaten its business
model, future performance, solvency or liquidity. The principal risks, which have been identfied, and the steps taken by the Board to miigate these
areas are as follows:

RISK MITIGATION

Investment Activity and Performance

An unsuccessful investment stategy may resut in The Board has managed these risks by ensuring a diversification of
underperformance against the Company's objectives. This might  investments, although the level of diversificaion will diminish as the


http://www.rns-pdf.londonstockexchange.com/rns/7170G_1-2025-4-29.pdf
http://www.rns-pdf.londonstockexchange.com/rns/7170G_1-2025-4-29.pdf
http://www.rns-pdf.londonstockexchange.com/rns/7170G_1-2025-4-29.pdf

be due 10 the skilis of the Investment Manager falling short In its
selection of sectors or issues in which to invest and ifs
management of the restructurings/reorganisations which can
ensure their success.

Principal Risks Associated with Harvest Periods

There can be a significant period between the date te
Company makes an investment and the date that any gain or
loss on such investment is realised. Further, towards the end of
the Portiolios' respective harvest periods, a residual amount is
required to be retained for each share class in accordance with
regulatory requirements until such time tat all assets can be
liquidated and returned to shareholders.

As capital is returned through compulsory partial redemptions
and buybacks, the number of assets and shares in a Portiolio
will diminish which in turn may lead to an increased TER and
reduced liquidity in a Portolio's shares.

Level of Premium or Discount
A discount or premium to NAV can occur for a variely of
reasons, including market condifons and the extent to which
investors undervalue the management aciviies of te
Investiment Manager or discount its valuation methodology and
judgement

Market Price Risk

Market price risk is the potental for changes in the value of an
investment or Portiolio. The market value of investments may
vary because of a number of factors including, but not limited o,
the financial condition of the underlying borrowers, the industry
in which a borrower operates, general economic or poliical
conditons, interest rates, the condiion of te debt trading
markets and certain other financial markets, developments or
trends in any particular industry and changes in prevailing
interest rates.

Further details on market price risk are provided in Note 4
below.

Fair Valuation of llliquid Assets

With respect to investments that do not have a readiy
ascerfainable market quotaon in an acive market te
Invesiment Manager will value such investments at fair value
and such valuations will be inherently uncertain. Because of the
inherent uncertainty and subjecivity in determining the fair value
of investments that do not have a readily ascertainable market
quotation in an aclive market, the fair value of the Company's
investments as determined in good faith by the Investment
Manager may differ significanty from the values that would have
been used had a ready market existed for such invesiments.
The reliability of the NAV calculatons published by the
Company will be impacted accordingly.

Accounting, Legal and Regulatory
The Company must comply with the provisions of the Law, and
since ifs shares trade on the SFS. the Conmpanv is reauired to

respectve Fortolios liquidate their positons during their harvest
periods. Please see "Principal Risks Specific to Harvest Periods"
below. The Investment Manager operates in accordance with the
investment limits and restricions policy set out in the Company's
Investment Policy and Objectives and as further determined by the
Board. The Directors review the limits and restrictions on a regular
basis and the Administrator monitors adherence fo the limits and
restricions every month and will nofify any breaches to the Board.
The Investment Manager provides the Board with management
information including performance data and reports, and the
Corporate Broker provides shareholder analyses. The Directors
monitor the implementation and results of the investment process with
the Investment Manager at each Board meetng and monitor risk
factors in respect of the Portfolios. Investment strategy is reviewed at
each meeting.

The Board has ensured that the Investment Manager has operated
in accordance with the investment limits and restrictions policy set out
in the Company's Investment Policy and Objectives, although it
acknowledges that the diversificaion of Portolio investments will
diminish as the Portfolios liquidate their posiions and return capital to
shareholders. The Board also receives regular updates on the
status of the Portolios' investments and anticipated realisation dates.

The Board monitors the Company's expenses on a regular basis
and ensures that contracts with the Investment Manager and other
service providers are at competitive rates. The Board also notes that
the Company's key expenses, the management fee, was waived
with effect from 18 March 2021.

The Company refains the services of its broker, Jefferies
International Limited to, amongst other things, enhance liquidity in the
underlying shares.

While the Directors may seek to miigate any discount or premium to
NAV per share through discount management mechanisms, such as
buybacks or share issuance, there can be no guarantee that they
will do so or that such mechanisms will be successful and te
Directors accept no responsibility for any failure of any such strategy
to effect a reduction in any discount or premium. Buy backs have
been ceased with the focus moving to returning capital o
shareholders via compulsory redemptions.

The Board has, over the Investment Periods of the various share
classes, ensured that the Investment Manager has operated in
accordance with the Company's investrent guidelines. The
Directors monitor the status of the Portlio invesiments with the
Invesiment Manager at each quarterly Board meeting and monitor
risk factors in respect of the Portiolios.

With respect fo investments held in the Company's Portiolios that do
not have a readily available market quotation, such as unquoted
investments or investments which are listed but deemed to be illiquid,
the Investment Manager values such investments at fair value on
each NAV calculation date in accordance with its customary valuation
methods, policies and procedures. Further informaton on the
Company's valuation process can be found in Note 2(g) under
"Investment  transactions, investment income/expenses and
valuation", and Note 2(f), "Fair Value of Financial Instruments", of the
Audied Consolidated Financial Statements (the "Financial
Statements").

The Board monitors, reviews and challenges the Company's fair
valued assets on a regular basis o ensure conpliance with the
agreed methodology. The Board reviews the Investment Manager's
internal review process.

The Board relies on the Company Secrefary and the Company's
advisers to ensure adherence to the Guernsev ledislation and the



comply with the FCA's Disclosure Guidance and Transparency DTRs. The Invesiment Manager, Company Secrefary and te
Rules ("DTRs"). A breach of the legislaion could result in the ~ Administrator, are contracted to provide investment company
Company and/or the Directors being fined or subject to criminal ~ secrefarial, administration and accounting services through qualified
proceedings and the suspension of the Company's shares o professionals.

trading on the SFS.

Operational

Disruption to, or the failure of, either the Investment Manager's Details of how the Board monitors the services provided by the
or the Administrator's accounting, dealings or payment systems,  Investment Manager and the Administrator, and the key elements
or the records of the custodian could lead to a loss of assets and ~ designed to provide effective internal controls are explained further
prevent the accurate reporting or monitoring of the Company's  in the internal controls section of the Corporate Governance Report
financial position. which is set out below.

Emerging Risks

The Board undertakes a quarterly assessment of all risks on a forward-looking basis, and in discussion with the Investment Manager identiies
emerging risks in additon to assessing expected changes to existing risks as discussed above. The Board assesses the likelihood and impact of
emerging risks. The Board will discuss and agree appropriate miigaion or management of emerging risks as relevant to those emerging risks.
Exanples of emerging risks that have been identiied over the course of the past three years included the continuing effects of climate related risks,
the issuance of new regulations and changing geopoliical risks. Emerging risks are managed through discussion of the likelihood and impact at
each quarterly Board meeting. Should an emerging risk be defermined o have any potential impact on the Company, appropriate miigating
measures and controls are agreed.

In 2019, the Board identfied activism relating to dimate change as an emerging risk and since then has closely monitored regulatory and other
developments in this area. The UN's latest Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) report will be considered by the Board when
undertaking Company related business.

Going Concern

The Company's principal activities are set out on page 4. The financial position of the Company is set out on page 59. In addition, note 4 o the
Financial Statements includes the Company's objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital, its financial risk management and its
exposures fo credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Directors have undertaken a rigorous review of the Company's ability to confinue as a going concern including reviewing the on-going cash
flows and the level of cash balances, the likely liquidity of investments and any income deriving from those investments as of the reporfing date as
well as taking into consideration the impact of emerging risks and have determined that the Company has adequate financial resources to meet its
liabilites as they fall due. The Directors therefore have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the twelve months from the date these accounts are signed and the foreseeable future notwithstanding the focus on
moving towards liquidation. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the Financial Statements and confirm
thatthey have been prepared in accordance with Guidance on the Going Concern Basis of Accounting and Reporting on Solvency and Liquidity
Risks, published by the FRC.

The going concern statement required by the AIC Corporate Governance Code (the "AIC Code") last updated in August 2024 is set out in the
"Directors' Responsibiliies Statement' on page 53.

Viability Statement

In accordance with provision 8.2 paragraph 36 of the AIC Code, the Directors have assessed the future prospects of the Cormpany. In making
their assessment the Directors have considered the Company's status as an investment entiy, its investment objectives, the principal and emerging
risks it faces, its current position and the time period over which its assets are likely to be realised.

In their assessment of the viability of the Company over the forthcoming twelve months, being the expected fime to realisaion of the final assefs of
the share classes of the Company, the Directors have carried out a robust assessment of the emerging risks, principal risks and uncertainties the
Company faces, as defailed on pages 82 and 83. These risks include the timing of asset realisations during the Portiolios' harvest periods, the
Company's income and expenditure projections, and the expected cash flows arising in particular from capital distributions to shareholders. The
Directors noted that such distributions may be restricted if the interest and dividend income generated in the Portolios is not suficient o meet
operational expenses.

As part of heir review, the Directors carried out a series of sfress tests under different scenarios which assumed a significant fall in income and
asset levels and a corresponding increase in expenses and were safisfied with the results of this analysis. The Directors have performed a
quantiaive and qualitative analysis that included the Company's income and expenditure projections and the fact that the Company's investments
can be expected to be sold, within a reasonable imeframe, to meet future funding requirements if necessary. As part of this assessment, the
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in income and no reduction in expenses, and were satisfied that the Company would continue to be viable financially.

The Directors have concluded that there is a reasonable expectation that the Company will be able to confinue in operation and meet its liabilites
as they fall due over the remaining life of each of ifs three share classes, which the Direcfors consider to be the twelve month period from the
signing date of these financial statements. However, the Directors noted tat the prospects for the Company, which has an indefinite life, are
subject fo change should the Company add new share classes o ifs structure before the existing Portiolios' assets are fully realised although this is
highly unlikely.

Key Performance Indicators

In order to measure the success of the Company in meeiing its objeclives and to evaluate the performance of the Investment Manager, the
Directors take info account the following performance indicators:

«  Returns and NAV - At each meeting the Board reviews the NAV, income and share price of each share class. To assist in tis review the
Board considers formal reports from both the Investment Manager and brokers which assess the performance of the asset class and look at
trading activity. The Investment Manager also provides an in-depth analysis of the holdings within the Portfolios.

«  Discount/premum o NAV - At each Board meefing, the Board monitors the level of the Company's discount or premium to NAV per share
class and reviews the average discount/premium for other debt-orientated investment companies. The Company publishes a NAV per share
on a daily basis through the official newswire of the London Stock Exchange.

«  Ongoing Charges - In the year to 31 Decerrber 2024, the Company's Ongoing Charges were 1.62%. This figure is based on an annual
expense figure for the year of 1,263,616. This figure, which has been prepared in accordance with AIC guidance represents the Company's
operating expenses, excluding finance costs payable, expressed as a percentage of average net assets. The Ongoing Charges by share
class are disclosed above.

+  Total Expense Rato ("TER") - In the year to 31 December 2024, the Company's TER was 1.69%. This figure is based on an annual
expense figure for the year of 1,314,130. This figure which has been prepared in accordance with the U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles ("US GAAP") methodology, represents the annual percentage reduction in shareholder returns as a result of recurring operational
expenses. The TERs by share class are disclosed above.

Alternative Performance Measures ("APMs")

Alternative Performance Measures ("APMs") included in the Annual Financial Report and Financial Statements which require further clarification
have been considered by the Board. An APM is defined as a financial measure of historical or future financial performance, financial positon, or
cash flows, other than a financial measure defined or specified in the applicable financial reporting framework. APMs may not have a standard
meaning prescribed by US GAAP and therefore may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other entiies. APMs included in the
Annual Report and Financial Statements are deemed to be as follows:

ALTERNATIVE
PERFORMANCE
MEASURES PURPOSE AND/OR DESCRIPTION CALCULATION
Internal Rate of Return ("IRR")  The IRR is calculated by first calculating the
net present value (NPV), being (Today's
value of the expected future cash flows) -
(Today's value of invested cash). The IRR
is a determinafon of what discount rate
would cause the net present value (NPV) of
an investmentto be 0.

Rate of Return ("ROR") The RoR is the net gain or loss on an Itis calculated by taking the difference between the current
investment over a specified fme period, (or expected) value and original value, divided by original
expressed as a percentage of the  value and muliplied by 100.
investments initial cost
Opening NAV per share (A)
Closing NAV per share (B)

Rate of Return = (B-A)/A

Tofal Expense Ratio ("TER")  The TER is Management fees and all other ~ Annualised charges (A)
operaing expenses expressed as a  Average undiluted netassetvalue in the period (B)
percentage of average net assets during the
year. Total Expense Ratio (%) = (A)/(B)

On-going charges On-going Charges are calculated o the AIC Ongoing charges (%) = (A)/(B)
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IVIEUI0UOIOYY, WIICH IS d [Tedsure, expressea ATNudiised ongoing didryes (A)
as a percentage of NAV, of the regular, Average undiluted net asset value in the period (B)
recurring costs of the Company. "On-going

charges are those expenses of a type which

are likely to recur in the foreseeable future,

whether charged to capital or revenue, and

which relate to the operation of Company,

excluding the costs of acquisition/disposal of

investments,  financing  charges  and

gains/losses arising on investments. Ongoing

charges are based on costs incurred in the

year as being the best estimate of future

costs".

Net Asset Value per share The NAV per share represents the net assefs
("NAV") atributable to equity shareholders divided by
the number of shares in issue, excluding any
shares held in freasury.
The NAV per Ordinary Share is published
daily. This APM relates to past performance
and is used fo assess performance.

Total Return Total return is expressed as a percentage of Original Investment cost (A)
the amountinvested and represents the amount ~ Current Investments value (B)
of value our investors earn froma security over

a specific period. Tofal Return = (B-A)/A
Ratio of Total Value to Ratio of Total Value to original capital is a tofal of ~ Total Capital Distribuions (A)
original capital NAV plus capital returned to investors Total Income Distributions (B)
expressed as a percentage of the original Total Buybacks (C)
amountinvested since inception. CurrentNAV (D)

Total of NAV Plus Capital Returned, where (E) = A+B+C+D
Original Capital Invested (F)
Ratio of Total Value to original capital (%) = E/F

(Discount) or Premiumto The share price of an Investment Company is ~ NAV per share (NBDD) (A
NAV derived from buyers and sellers trading their ~ Share price per share (NBDD) (B)
shares on the stock market This price is not
identical to the NAV. If the share price is lower NBDD (Discount) or Premium = (B-A)/A
than the NAV per share, the shares are trading
ata discount This could indicate that there are ~ NAV per share (NBDX) (A
more sellers than buyers. Shares trading ata  Share price per share (NBDX) (B)
price above the NAV per share, are said to be
at a premium This is expressed as a  NBDX(Discounf) or Premium=(B-A)/A

percentage.
NAV per share (NBDG) (A
Share price per share (NBDG) (B)

NBDG (Discount) or Prermium = (B-A)/A

Management Arrangements

Investment Management Agreement

On 17 July 2014, the Company, the Manager and the AIFM made certain dassificatory amendments to their confractual arrangements for the
purposes of compliance with the European Conmission's Direcive on Alternative Investment Fund Managers (the "AIFM Directive"). The Sub-
Investment Management Agreement was terminated on 17 July 2014 and Neuberger Berman Investment Advisers LLC, which was the Sub-
Investment Manager, was appointed as the AIFM per the amended and restated Investment Management Agreement ("IMA") dated 17 July
2014. The IMA was further amended and restated on 31 December 2017. Under this agreement, the AIFM is responsible for risk management
and day-to-day discrefionary management of the Company's Portiolios (including un-invested cash). The risk management and discretionary
portiolio management functions are performed independently of each other within the AIFM structure. The AIFM is not required to, and generally
will not, submit individual investment decisions for approval by the Board. The Manager, Neuberger Berman Europe Limited, was appointed
under the same IMA fo provide, amongst other things, certain administrative services o the Company. Please refer to Note 6 on page 85 for
defails of fee entifement.

The IMA can be terminated either by the Company on one hand or the Investment Manager on the other, but in certain circumstances, the
Company would be required to pay compensation to the Investment Manager of six months' management charges. No compensation is payable if
nofice of termination of more than six months is given. Efiective 1 October 2020 the Investment Manager waived ifs fee on cash in relation to the
NBDD share class. Effective 18 March 2021, the Investment Manager waived its enfilement to all fees from the Company.



Administration and Custody Agreement

Efiecive 1 March 2015, the Company entered into an Administration and Sub-Administration Agreement with U.S. Bank Global Fund Services
(Guernsey) Limited ("USBG") and U.S. Bank Global Fund Services (Ireland) Limited ("USBI") a wholly-owned subsidiary of USBG. Under the
terms of the agreement, Sub-Administration services are delegated to USBI (the "Sub-Administrator”). US Bank National Association (the
"Custodian") was appointed custodian to the Company effective 1 March 2015. See Note 6 on page 85 and 86 for details of fee entilement

On 1 June 2018 the Comrpany entered info an Amendment o the Administration and Sub-Administration agreement to reflect the requirements of
the General Data Protection Regulation (EU) 2016/679 ("GDPR") and the Data Protection (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 2017, as amended from
time to time.

Company Secretarial and Registrar Airangements

Eflecive 20 June 2017, company secrefarial services are provided by Suntera (Guernsey) Limited (formerly named Carey Commercial Limited).
Registrar services are provided by MUFG Corporate Markets (UK) Limited (formerly named Link Market Services (Guernsey) Limited).

See Note 6 below for details of fee entilement

Related Party Transactions

The relationships with the Investment Manager and Directors are the only related party fransactions currenty in place. Other than fees payable in
the ordinary course of business there have been no material fransactions with these related parties which have affected the financial position or
performance of the Company in the financial year.

For information on performance fees and Directors' fees please refer to Note 6 below.

For and on behalf of the Board,

John Hallam Christopher Legge
Chairman Director
29 April 2025 29 April 2025

GOVERNANCE | Directors
Directors
John Hallam (Chairman)
-_ John Hallamis a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and qualified as an accountant

f 8 ‘l, in 1971. Previously, Mr Hallam was a parter at PricewaterhouseCoopers and refred in 1999 after 27 years with
the frmin Guernsey and in other countries. He is a director of a number of financial services companies. Mr Hallam

. ‘ served for many years as a member and latterly chairman of the GFSC, fromwhich he refired in 2006.

Michael J. Holmberg

Michael J. Holmberg, Managing Director of Neuberger Berman, joined the NB Group in 2009. Mr Holberg is
the head of distressed portfolio management Prior to joining NB Group, Mr Holmberg founded Newberry Capital
Management LLC in 2006 and before that he founded and managed Ritchie Capital Managements Special Credit
Opportunifies Group. He was also a managing direcor at Strategic Value Partners and Moore Strategic Value
‘\ Parners. He began investng in distressed and credit-oriented strategies as a portfolio manager at Continental
Bank/Bank of America, where he established the bank's global proprietary capital account Mr Holmberg received

a BA in econormics from Kenyon College and an MBA from the University of Chicago.

Christopher Legge (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
_ Chris Legge is a Guernsey resident and worked for Ernst & Young in Guernsey from 1983 to 2003. Having joined the firm
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was head of Audit and Accountancy and was responsible for the audits of a number of banking, insurance, investment fund,
property fund and other financial services clients. He also had responsibility for the frmis training, quality control and
compliance functions. He was appointed managing partner for the Channel Islands region in 2000 and merged the
business with Ernst & Young LLP in the United Kingdom. He refired from Ernst & Young in 2003. Chris currenty holds a
number of non-executive directorships in the financial services sector. He is an FCAand holds a BA (Hons) in Economics
fromthe University of Manchester.

Stephen Vakil (Chairman of the Management Engagement Committee and Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
Senior Independent Director)

After graduating with a BSc in economics from Bath University in 1983, Stephen Vakil joined L Messel & Co and
moved to Chase Manhatian in 1987 to focus on private client portiolio management In 1989, he left to join Foster &
Braithwaite where he established the research function and subsequently became a director. Following Foster &
Braithwaite's merger with Quilter Goodison fo form Quilter & Co in 1996, Mr Vakil was given responsibility for the
London investment teams, the research department and marketing function. He was made a managing director in
2001. Having played a key role in a number of corporate fransactions, Mr Vakil left Quilter Cheviotin 2013. He is an
Associate of the Society of Investment Professionals.

GOVERNANCE | Directors' Report

Directors' Report
The Directors present their report and Financial Statements of the Company and their report for the year ended 31 December 2024.
Share Capital

The number of shares in issue at 31 December 2024 was as follows:

Class A Shares 2
Ordinary Shares 15,382,770
Extended Life Shares 38,731,819
New Global Shares 25,123,440
Share Buybacks

At the Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of the Company held on 26 June 2024, the Directors were granted the general authority to purchase in
the market up to 14.99% of the Ordinary Shares, 14.99% of the Extended Life Shares and 14.99% of the New Global Shares in issue (as at 26
June 2024). The latest authority will expire at the AGM to be held on 30 June 2025. Pursuant to this authority, and subject to the Law and the
discretion of the Direcors, the Company may purchase shares of any of its classes in the market on an ongoing basis with a view to addressing
any imbalance between the supply of and demand for such shares, thereby increasing the NAV per share of the shares and assisting in
controlling the share price discount to NAV per share.

There were no buybacks of the Company's Shares in 2024 as on 16 Noverber 2020 the Company announced in its quarterly Factsheet that the
share buyback programme had been discontinued. The buyback programme was intended to narrow the discount, if any, during the investment
period. At this point of the harvest period, the priority, based on investor feedback, is the return of capital. The Directors intend o seek annual
renewal of this authority from Shareholders to retain flexibility.

Distributions

The Company will, from time to time, pay out income distributions by way of dividend in respect of each share class in accordance with the
Company's dividend policy as set out below. In addition, any capital proceeds atfributable to a share class (as determined by the Directors in
accordance with the Articles), will, at such fmes and in such amounts as the Directors shall in their absolute discrefion determine, be distributed to
shareholders of that class pro rata to their respective holdings of the relevant shares. Further information on the Company's income and capital
distribution policies can be found on page 7.

Dividend Policy
As set outin the Company's Prospectus, the Company will pay out in respect of each class of shares an income distribuion by way of dividend,

comrprising all net income received on investments of the Company atfributable to such class of shares. It is not anticipated that income from the
portiolio will be material and therefore any dividends may be on an ad-hoc basis. It is a requirement of an exception to the United Kingdom



offshore fund rules that all income from the Company's Portolio (afler deduction of reasonable expenses) is o be paid to investors. This policy
should ensure that this requirement will be met The exact amount of such dividend in respect of any class of Shares will be variable depending
on the amounts of income received by the Company aftributable to such dlass of Shares and will only be made available in accordance with
applicable law at the relevant fime, including the Law (and, in particular, will be subject to the Company passing the solvency test contained in the
Law at the relevant ime). Furthermore, the amount of dividends paid in respect of one class of shares may be diflerent from that of another class.
This policy will be put o a shareholder vote by way of separate resolution at each AGM.

Distributions made during the year

The following distributions were made:

Income distribution by way of dividend

ORDINARY SHARE CLASS EXTENDED LIFE SHARE CLASS NEW GLOBAL SHARE CLASS
NUMBER PER NUMBER PER
DISTRIBUTION OF SHARE| DISTRIBUTION OF  SHARE| DISTRIBUTION NUMBER OF PER SHARE
DATE AMOUNT  SHARES AMOUNT AMOUNT  SHARES AMOUNT AMOUNT  SHARES  AMOUNT
21 November 2024 - - - G54675 44,234,786 0.0148 612077 27,821,6% £0.02

Capital distributions by way of a compulsory partial redemption

ORDINARY SHARE CLASS EXTENDED LIFE SHARE CLASS NEW GLOBAL SHARE CLASS
NUMBER PER NUMBER PER
DISTRIBUTION OF  SHARE| DISTRIBUTION OF  SHARE| DISTRIBUTION NUMBER OF PER SHARE
DATE AMOUNT  SHARES AMOUNT AMOUNT  SHARES AMOUNT AMOUNT  SHARES  AMOUNT
26 November 2024 - - - 5,491,966 5502971 0.9980 £149348 2698258 £0.5635

Substantial Share Interests

Based upon information deemed to be reliable as provided by the Company's registrar as at 31 March 2025, the following shareholders owned
5% or more of the issued shares of the Company.

NO. OF PERCENTAGE
ORDINARY  NO. OF EXTENDED NO. OF NEW OF SHARE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS SHARES LIFESHARES  GLOBAL SHARES CLASS (%)
THE BANK OF NEW YORK (NOMINEES) LIMITED 13,115,065 8.2%
UKREITS ACCT 1,135,200 293
STATE STREETNOMINEES LIMITED OM05 ACCT 6,363,446 16.43
6,810,312 209
NORTRUSTNOMINEES LIMITED GSYA ACCT 8,230,598 2125
2,716,609 1.%
STATE STREETNOMINEES LIMITED OM04 ACCT 2,304,200 5%
3,100,194 1367
THE BANK OF NEW YORK (NOMINEES) LUMITED 834,309 5.75
672938 ACCT 1,719,840 444
1,967,366 6.89
VIDACOS NOMINEES LIMITED 158765 ACCT 304,487 2.5%
1,675,745 433
1,581,884 6.9%
J P MORGAN SECURITIES LLC CLIENTSK ACCT 2,961,775 765
583,877 257
HSBC GLOBAL CUSTODY NOMINEE (UK) 3474614 897
LIMITED 487757 ACCT 110,330 048
ROCK (NOMINEES) LIMITED CSHGROSS ACCT 1,370,008 35
1,290,409 5.67

HSBC GLOBAL CUSTODY NOMINEE (UK)
LIMITED 898873 ACCT 1,969,781 8.66
LYNCHWOOD NOMINEES LIMITED 2006420 ACCT 6,1% 0.04
2,907,465 7.51
14,927 0.07

Note: shareholdings may be greater than 5% in the share class but may not be 5% in aggregate of the Compeny's issued shere capital.

Notifications of Shareholdings

In the year to 31 Decerrber 2024 the Company has been notified in accordance with Chapter 5 of the DTR (which covers the acquisiion and
disposal of major shareholdings and vofing rights), of the following voting rights as a shareholder of the Company. When more than one



noffication has been received from any shareholder, only the latest noffication is shown. For non-UK issuers, the thresholds prescribed under
DTR 5.1.2 for nofffication of holdings commence at5%. Class A shares do not hold voting rights.

PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL
SHAREHOLDER NUMBER OF SHARES VOTING RIGHTS (%)
M&G Pl 15,593,253 19.67%
Alliance Witan Pic 13,007,692 14.88%

Since the year end 31 Decenber 2024 to the date of this report, there have been wo nofifications received by the Company.

PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL
DATE SHAREHOLDER NUMBER OF SHARES VOTING RIGHTS (%)
05 March 2025 1729 Capital Ld - Res Privata N.V. 4,331,552 547
06 March 2025 Nortrust Nominees Limited 11,230,598 1417

Directorship in Public Companies (as at 31 December 2024)

COMPANY NAMES EXCHANGE(S)
Mr John Hallam

NB Distressed Debt Investiment Fund Limited SFS, London
Rufler lliquid Multi Strategies Fund 2015 Limited The International Stock Exchange ("TISE")
Mr Michael Holmberg

NB Distressed Debt Investment Fund Limited SFS, London
Mr Christopher Legge

NB Distressed Debt Investment Fund Limited SFS, London
Mr Stephen Vakil

NB Distressed Debt Investment Fund Limited SFS, London
Portfolio REIT PLC TISE

Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy

The Board of the Company has a zero-tolerance approach to instances of bribery and corruption. Accordingly, it expressly prohibits any Director
or associated persons, when acting on behalf of the Company, from accepting, soliciing, paying, offering or promising to pay or authorise any
payment, public or private, in the United Kingdom or abroad to secure any improper beneft for them or for the Company. The Investment
Manager has also adopted a zero-olerance approach 1o instances of bribery and corruption.

The Board insists on strict observance with these same standards by ifs service providers in their activities for the Company and continues to
refine ifs process in this regard. The Company's policy is available on its website at www.nbddif. com/corporate_governance.htrr

Climate Change

In 2019, the Board identiied concerns relating to climate change as an emerging risk and since then has closely monitored regulatory and other
developments in this area. The Board is conscious of its own impact on the environment, despite being an investment company with no
enployees, and has committed, on a going forward basis, o offset its carbon-emissions arising from the air travel by the menbers of the Board
undertaking Company related business. In addition, the Board makes extensive use of teleconferencing facilities thus limiing the amount of ravel,
all board papers are produced and hosted digitally via a dedicated board web-portal and the Company makes relevant enquiries to our key
service providers during face-to-face meefings about their iniiaives and atiitudes to climate change.

Criminal Facilitation of Tax Evasion Policy
The Board of the Company has a zero-folerance comnitment fo preventing persons associated with it from engaging in criminal facilitaion of tax
evasion. The Board has safisfied itself in relation to its key service providers that they have reasonable provisions in place to prevent the criminal

facilitation of tax evasion by their own associated persons and will not work with service providers who do not demonstrate the same zero
tolerance commitment to preventing persons associated with it from engaging in criminal facilitation of tax evasion. The Company's policy is

available on its website at www.nbddif.com/corporate governance.html.
Employee Engagement & Business Relationships

The Companv conducts ifs core activities throuah third-partv service oroviders and does not have anv emplovees. The Board recoanises the


http://www.nbddif.com/corporate_governance.html
http://www.nbddif.com/corporate_governance.html

benefits of fostering strong business relafionships with ifs key service providers and seeks to ensure each is committed to the performance of their
respective duties to a high standard and, where praciicable, that each provider is mofivated to adding value within their sphere of aclivity. Details
on the Board's approach to service provider engagementand performance review are contained in the Management Engagement Commitiee
Report

Employees and Socially Responsible Investment
The Company has a management contract with the Investment Manager. Ithas no employees and all of its Directors are non-execufive, with day-
to-day aciviies being carried out by third parties. There are therefore no disclosures to be made in respect of enployees. The Company's main

activiies are carried out by Neuberger Berman, which is a signatory of the Principles of Responsible Investment and has an ongoing commitment
to strengthening and refining its environmental, social and governance approach. An overview of Neuberger Berman's Principles for Responsible

Investmentis detailed on its website at www.nb.com/pages/public/en-gb/principles-for-responsible-investment aspx.

Gender Metrics

The current Board menrbers are male. More information on the Board's consideration of diversity is given in the Corporate Governance Report
below.

General Data Protection Regulation

The Company takes privacy and security of your information seriously and will only use such personal information as set out in the Company's
privacy notice which can be found on the Company's website at htips://www.nbddif.com/pdfNB Privacy Nofice 2021.pdf.

Global Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The Company has no significant greenhouse gas emissions to report from its operations for the year to 31 Decerber 2024, nor does it have
responsibility for any other emissions producing sources.

The Modern Slavery Act 2015 ("MSA")

The MSA requires companies to prepare a slavery and human trafiicking statement for each financial year of the organisation. As the Company
has no employees and does not supply goods or services, the MSA does not directy apply to it The MSA requirements more appropriately
relate to the Investment Manager which is a signatory of the Principles of Responsible Investment (please see "Employees and Socially
Responsible Investment" above) which include social factors such as working conditions, including slavery and child labour. The MSA of the
Investment Manager is available on its website at NB.com

Disclosure of Information to Auditors

The Directors who were members of the Board at the fime of approving this report are listed abov. Each of those Directors confirms that:

o o the best of his or her knowledge and belief, there is no information relevant to the preparation of their report of which the auditors are

unaware; and

o e or she has taken all steps a director might reasonably be expected to have taken to be aware of relevant audit information and to establish
that the Company's auditors are aware of that information.

For and on behalf of the Board.

John Hallam Christopher Legge
Chairman Director
29 April 2025 29 April 2025

Corporate Governance Report
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Applicable Corporate Governance Codes

As the Company is listed on the SFS it s only required to follow the GFSC code of corporate governance (the "Code"), applicable to Guernsey
corrpanies. However, the Board has chosen to follow the AIC Code published in February 2013 and last amended in August 2024 (the "AIC
Code"). The AIC Code addresses all the principles set outin the Code as well as setfing out additional principles and recommendations on issues
that are of specific relevance to the Company.

On 1 January 2012, the GFSC's "Finance Sector Code of Corporate Governance" came into effect and was last amended in July 2023. The
GFSC has stated in its Code that companies which report against the UK Corporate Governance Code (the "UK Code") or the AIC Code are
deemed to meet their Code, and need take no further action.

The Board of the Company has considered the principles and recommendations of the AIC Code.

The Board considers that reporting against the principles and recommendations of the AIC Code will provide more relevant information to
shareholders. Copies of the AIC Code can be found at www.teaic.co.uk.

Corporate Governance Statement

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2024 the Company has complied with the recommendations of the AIC Code, except where
explanations have been provided.

The Directors believe that this Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements, presents a fair, balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company's position and prospects, and provides the information necessary for shareholders o assess the Company's performance, business
model and strategy.

The Company complies with the corporate governance statement requirements pursuant to the FCA's DTRs by virtue of the information included
in the Corporate Governance secfion of the Annual Report together with information contained in the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report.

Our Governance Framework

Chairman: John Hallam

Responsibilities:

The leadership, operation and governance of the Board, ensuring effectiveness, and setting the agenda for the Board.

More details are provided on pages 35 to 41.

Senior Independent Director: Stephen Vakil

Responsibilities:

The Senior Independent Director's ("SID") role is to work closely with the chairman, acting as a sounding board and providing support, aciing as
an intermediary for other directors as and when necessary. The SID is available to shareholders and other non-executves o address any
concerns or issues they feel have not been adequately dealt with through the usual channels of communication (i.e. through the chairman, other
directors or Investment Management executives). The SID is also responsible, along with the non-executve Directors, for review of the
chairman's performance and carrying out succession planning for the chairman's role as deemed appropriate. The SID is available to attend

meetings with all shareholders o obtain a balanced understanding of their issues and concerns. A men is available on the Company's website
hitps://www.nbddif com/pdfMemorandum on the Duties of the 26 August 2020.pdf.

The Board members of NB Distressed Debt Investment Fund Limited
John Hallam (Chairman) - independent non-executive Director

Christopher Legge and Stephen Vakil - independent non-executive Directors
Michael Holmberg - non-executive Director

Responsibilities:

Overall conduct of the Company's business and setting the Company's strategy.

More details are provided below.

AUDIT COMMITTEE MANAGEMENT ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Members: Members:

Christopher Legge (Chairman) Stephen Vakil (Chairman)
Stephen Vakil John Hallam

Christopher Legge
Responsibilities: Responsibilities:

The provision of efective governance over the appropriateness of the  To review the performance of all service providers (including the
Company's financial reporting including the adequacy of related Investment Manager)

disclosures, the performance of the external auditor, and the

management of the Company's systems of internal controls and  More details are provided on pages 46 to 47.

business risks.

More details are provided on pages 42 o 45.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE INSIDE INFORMATION COMMITTEE
Members: Members:
Stephen Vakil (Chairman) John Hallam (Chairman)
John Hallam Michael Holmberg
Christopher Legge Christopher Legge
Stephen Vakil
Responsibilities: Responsibilities:
To review the on-going appropriateness and relevance of the To identify inside information and monitor the disclosure and control of
remuneration policy. inside information.
More details are provided on page 49. More details are provided on page 48.

Board Independence and Composition

The biographical details of the Directors holding office at the date of this report are listed on page 28 and demonstrate a breadth of investment,
accounting and professional experience.

As of 31 Decerrber 2024 John Hallam had served on the Board for over thirteen years, the Board remains satisfied that John Hallam confinues to
exercise independent judgement, and that retaining the depth of knowledge of the Company held by John is in the best interests of the Company
as a whole, given the current position of the Company. Mr Hallam was re-elected to the Board at the 2024 AGM with 81.63% of the votes cast
being in favour and expects to stand for re-election at the next AGM.

John Hallam, Christopher Legge and Stephen Vakil are considered independent from the Investment Manager. Michael Holmberg is deemed not
independent as he is employed by a Neuberger Berman group company.

The Board believes that Mr Holmberg brings a significant amount of experience and expertse to the Board; however, as a non-independent
Director, Mr Holmberg does not sit on the Audit Conmittee, Remuneration Commitiee or the Management Engagement Commitiee and is not
involved in any matters discussed by the Board concerning the evaluation of the performance of the Investment Manager.

The Directors review their independence annually.

The Company Secretary through its representative acts as Secrefary to the Board and Committees and in doing so it

o assists the Chairman in ensuring that all Directors have full and timely access to all relevant documentation;
o will organise induction of new Directors; and
o isresponsible for ensuring that the correct Board procedures are followed and advises the Board on corporate governance matters.

Directors' Appointment

No Director has a service contract with the Company. Directors have agreed letiers of appointment with the Company, copies of which are
available for review by shareholders at the Registered Ofice and will be available at the 2025 AGM. The length of service of each Director is
shown in the Direcfors' Remuneration Report on pages 51 to 52. Any Director may resign in writing to the Board atany fime.

The Board has formal, rigorous and transparent procedures for the appointment of additional directors. Candidates are identfied and selected on
merit against objective criteria and with due regard to the benefts of diversity on the Board, including gender. The Board undertakes a broad
search which includes obtaining lists of potential candidates from a variety of sources leading to agreed shortlists. Interviews are then held with
potential candidates. The skills, experience and fime availability of each candidate is considered by the Board with due reaard to the skills and



experience necessary to replace those lost by refrements or otherwise considered desirable to strengthen the Board. Shortlisted candidates are
invited to meet the Chairman and the Investment Manager and feedback is provided to the Board prior to selection.

In accordance with the AIC Code all current Directors will offer themselves for re-election at each AGM of the Conpany; John Hallam, Michael
Holmberg, Christopher Legge and Stephen Vakil were re-elected as Directors at the AGM on 26 June 2024. The names and biographies of the
Directors holding ofice at the date of this report are listed on page 28.

Tenure of Non-Executive Directors

The Board has adopted a policy on tenure that is considered appropriate for an investment company. Mr Hallam has served as a director of the
Company for over thirteen years. The Board does not believe that length of service, by itself, leads to a closer relationship with the Investment
Manager or necessarily afiects a Director's independence. The Board has sought to appoint Directors with past and current experience of
various areas relevant to the Company's business. The Board agreed to adopt an amended tenure and succession policy in February 2018
which is reflective of the Board's belief that it is not in the best interests of shareholders to replenish the Board at the current ime when the long-
term outiook of the umbrella of the Company is unknown, save for the appointment of directors to fil a key vacant position with due regard to the
skills and experience necessary 1o replace those lost by Directors' refirements.

Direcfors are expected o devote such fime as is necessary to enable them to discharge their duties. Other business relationships, including those
that confict or may potentially confict with the interests of the Company, are taken info account when appointng Board members and are
monitored on a regular basis.

Re-election of Directors

John Hallam, Michael Holmberg, Christopher Legge and Stephen Vakil have confirmed their infention to submit themselves for re-election at the
next AGM.

The Board recognises that the Portfolios are now in their harvest periods and, as such, itbelieves thatitis in the best interess of shareholders and
the Company to maintain the current Board composition for the time being in order to benefit from the Directors' technical knowledge and
experience of managing the Company's aflairs as the assefs continue o wind down. The Board confirmed that the contributions made by the
Directors offering themselves for re-election at the next AGM continue to be effective and that the Company should support their re-election.

The dates of appointment of all Directors are provided in the Directors' Remuneration Conmmitiee Report on page 52.
Board Diversity

The Board considers that its members have a balance of skills and experience which are relevant to the Company. The Board notes the Davies
Report, Hampton-Alexander Review and the Parker Review, and believes in the value and importance of diversity in the boardroom but it does
not consider it is appropriate or in the interests of the Company and its shareholders particularly given current circumstances to set prescriptive
targets for gender, ethnicity, naionality or any other criterion of representation on the Board. At 31 December 2024, the Board members were
male. The Board confinues to focus on encouraging diversity of business skills and experience, recognising that directors with diverse skills sets,
capabiliies and experience gained from difierent backgrounds enhances the Board but has no current plans to refresh the Board.

Board Responsibilities

The Board reviews all aspects of the Company's affairs including the seting and monitoring of investment strategy and the review of investment
performance. W the Portiolios now in their harvest periods, the Investment Manager takes decisions as to the sale of individual investments, in
line with the investment policy and strategy set by the Board. The Investment Manager together with the Company Secretary and Administrator
also ensures that all Directors receive, in a fimely manner, all relevant management, regulatory and financial information relating to the Company
and its portiolio of investments. Representatives of the Investment Manager attend each Board meeting, enabling the Directors to question any
matters of concern or seek clarification on certain issues. Matters specifically reserved for decision by the full Board have been defined and a
procedure adopted for Directors in the furtherance of their duties to take independent professional advice at the expense of the Company. This is
available on the Company's website www.nbddif.com

Conflict of Interests

Directors are required to disclose all aclual and potental confiicts of interest to the Board as they arise and the Board may impose restricions or
refuse to authorise conflicts if deemed appropriate. The Directors have undertaken fo notify the Company Secrefary as soon as they become
aware of any new potential conflicts of interest that would need to be approved by te Board. Only Directors who have no material interest in the
matter being considered will be able to partcipate in the Board approval process.
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It has also been agreed that the Directors will advise the Chairman and the Company Secrefary in advance of any proposed external
appointment

None of the Directors had a material interest in any contract, which is significant to the Company's business during the year ended 31 Decenrber
2024, except Michael Holmberg, being an employee of the Neuberger Berman Group of which the Investment Manager is part of.

The Directors' Remuneration Report on pages 50 to 52 provides information on the remuneration and interests of the Directors.

Performance Evaluation

The performance of the Board, its Committees and the Directors, including the Chairman, was reviewed by the Board on 12 November 2024, by
means of an internal questionnaire. The Company Secretary collated the results of the questionnaires and the consolidated results were reviewed
and discussed by the Board and by the Remuneration Commitiee. The Chairman reviewed each individual Director's confribution.

The 2024 evaluation concluded that

o the performance of the Board, its commitiees, the Chairman and each of the Direcfors confinues o be effeciive;
e MrHallam Mr Legge and Mr Vakil are unanimously considered independent;

o all current Directors should be proposed for re-election at the next AGM; and

o the Board was considered to have an appropriate mix of skills and experience.

The Board intends to conduct another internal board evaluation in November 2025, and will confinue to review its procedures, its effeciveness
and development in the year ahead.

The Directors noted that all three share classes were currently in harvest phase and agreed that, due to the position of the Company, it was not
beneficial or necessary o incur the costs of an externally facilitated external evaluaton. The Directors agreed that in the unlikely event that
Company's life were to be extended, further consideration would be given to an externally facilitated evaluation and therefore agreed to keep this
position under review.

The Remuneration Commitiee (excluding John Hallam) led by the Chairman of the Remuneration Commitiee reviewed the Chairman. It was
agreed that the Chairman was well-regarded by the other Board members and that he provided excellent depth of knowledge of the Company. In
addition, the Chairman has acfively offered himself to meet with shareholders over the year.

Induction/Information and Professional Development

Directors are provided, on a regular basis, with key information on the Company's policies, regulatory requirements and its internal controls.
Regulatory and legislative changes affecting Directors' responsibiliies are advised to the Board as they arise along with changes to best practice
by, amongst others, the Company Secrefary and the Auditor. Advisers to the Company also prepare reports for the Board from fime to time on

relevant fopics and issues. In additon, Directors atiend relevant seminars and events to allow them confinually to refresh their skills and
knowledge and keep up with changes within the investment company industry. The Chairman reviewed the training and development needs of
each Director during the annual Board evaluaion process. The Chairman confirmed that all directors aclively kept up to date with industry
developments and issues.

Independent Advice

The Board recognises that there may be occasions when one or more of the Directors feels it is necessary to take independent legal advice at the
Company's expense. A procedure is setoutin the Directors' letiers of appointment to enable themto do so.

Indemnities

To the extent permitied by the Law, the Company's Articles provide an indenmity for the Directors against any liability except such (if any) as they
shall incur by or through their own breach of trust, breach of duty or negligence. Each Director has an Instument of Indemnity with the Company.

During the year, the Conpany has meintained insurance cover for its Directors and Officers under a Directors' and Officers' liability insurance
policy.

Relationship with the Investment Manager, Company Secretary, Administrator and Sub-Administrator



All of the Company’s management and administration functions are delegated o external parties including the management of the investment
Portholios, the custodial services (including the safeguarding of assets), the registration services and the day-to-day company secretarial,
administration and accounting services. Each of these contracts was entered into after full and proper consideration by the Board of the quality and
cost of services offered, including the confrol systems in operation in so far as tey relate to the affairs of the Company. The Management
Engagement Committee is responsible for the oversight of service providers.

The Board receives and considers reports regularly from the Investment Manager and ad hoc reports and information are supplied to the Board
as required. With the Portolios now in their harvest periods, the Investment Manager takes decisions as to the sale of individual investments. The
Investment Manager, Company Secrefary, Administrator and Sub-Administrator also ensure that all Directors receive, in a timely manner, all

relevant management, regulatory and financial information. Representatives of the Investment Manager, Administrator and Sub-Administrator
atiend each Board meeting enabling the Directors to probe further into matters of concern.

The Directors have access to the advice and service of the corporate Company Secrefary through its appointed representaive who is
responsible o the Board for ensuring that Board procedures are followed and that applicable rules and regulations are complied with. The Board,
the Investment Manager, Company Secrefary, the Administrator and Sub-Administrator operate in a supportive, co-operatve and open
environment

Shareholder Engagement

The Board believes that the maintenance of good relations with shareholders is important for the long-term prospects of the Company. It has, since
admission, sought engagement with investors. Where appropriate, the Chairman, and other Directors are available for discussion about
governance and strategy with major shareholders and the Chairman ensures communication of shareholders' views o the Board. The Board
receives feedback on the views of shareholders from its Corporate Broker ("Broker") and the Investment Manager, and shareholders are
welcome to contact the Directors atany fime via the Company Secrefary by email at NB.Distressed@suntera.com.

The Directors believe that the AGM provides an appropriate forum for shareholders to communicate with the Board and encourages participation.
There is an opportunity for individual shareholders to question the Chairman of the Board, the Audit Commitee, Management Engagement
Commitiee, Remuneration Commitiee and Inside Information Commitiee at the AGM. The Board also welcomes the opportunity to meet with
investors on a one-to-one basis, upon request

The Board assesses the results of AGMs and will consider whether there is a significant number of votes not lodged in favour of a resolution.
Where the Board considers that a significant number of votes have not been lodged in favour of a resoluion, an immediate announcement will be
made and further disclosures will be made in the nextAnnual Report The Broker and the Investment Manager will seek feedback from investors.
In addition to this the Broker and the Investment Manager will provide the Board with feedback that has been received from investors about the
performance of the Company and the Investment Manager.

Key Stakeholder Groups

The Company identfies its key stakeholder groups as follows:

Shareholders
All Board decisions are made with the Company's success in mind, which is ulimately for the long-term beneiit of our shareholders.

Service Providers

Qur service providers' relaionships are vital to our overall success, so as a Board we carefully consider the selection of, and engagement and
continued relationship with our key service providers being the Investment Manager, Administrator, Custodian, Broker, Legal Advisers, Registrar,
Auditor and Company Secretary.

The Board recognises the benefits of fostering strong business relaionships with its key service providers and seeks to ensure each is commitied
to the performance of their respective duties to a high standard and, where practicable, that each provider is motivated to adding value within their
sphere of acfivity.

The Board has delegated various duties to external parties including the management of the investment portiolio, the custodial services (including
the safeguarding of assefs), the registration services and the day-to-day company secrefarial, administraion and accounting services. Each of
these contracts was entered info after full and proper consideration by the Board of the quality and cost of services offered, including the confrol
systems in operation in so far as they relate to the affairs of the Company.

The Board continues to have regular face-to-face meefings with all key service providers.

Stakeholders and Section 172



Whilst only directly applicable to UK domiciled companies, the intention of the AIC Code is that matters set out in section 172 of the UK Companies
Act, 2006 are reported. The following disclosures offer some insight into how the Board uses its meefings as a mechanism for discharging its duties
under Provision 5 of the AIC Code, including the breadth of matters it discussed and debated during the year and the key stakeholder groups that
were central fo those discussions. The Board's commitment to maintaining the high-standards of corporate governance recommended in the AIC
Code, combined with the directors' duties enshrined in Company law, the consiituive documents, the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency
Rules, and Market Abuse Regulation, ensures that shareholders are provided with frequent and comprehensive information concerning the
Company and its activiies via the Company's website and Regulatory Information Service ("RIS") announcements on the LSE such as the
quarterly factsheets.

Each Board meeting follows a carefully tailored agenda agreed in advance by the Board and Company Secretary. A typical meeting will comprise
reports on current financial and operational performance from the Administrator, market update from the Broker, portiolio performance from the
Investment Manager, with regulatory and governance updates from the Company Secretary and where required, a detailed deep dive info an
area of particular sfrategic importance or concern. Through oversight and control, we have in place suitable policies to ensure the Company
maintains high standards of business conduct, treats customers fairly, and employ high standards of corporate governance.

Whilst the primary duty of the Directors is owed to the Company as a whole, the Board considers as part of its decision-making process the
interests of all stakeholders. Particular consideration being given to the continued alignment between the activiies of the Company and those that
contribute to delivering the Board's strategy, which include the Investment Manager, Administrator, and the Company Secrefary.

The Annual Report, Key Information Documents and quarterly fact sheets are available to provide shareholders with a clear understanding of the
Company's actviies and ifs results. This information is supplemented by the daily calculation and publication via a Regulatory Information Service
of the net asset value of the Company's Ordinary Shares, Extended Life Shares and New Global Shares. All documents issued by the Company
can be viewed on the Company's website at www.nbddif.com.

The Board respects and welcomes the views of all stakeholders. Any queries or areas of concern regarding the Company's operations can be
raised with the Company Secrefary.

2025 AGM

The 2025 AGM will be held in Guernsey on 30 June 2025. The nofice for the AGM will set out the ordinary and special resolutions to be
proposed at the meeting. Separate resolutions are proposed for each substantive issue. Shareholders wishing to lodge questions in advance of
the meefing and specifically related to the resolutions proposed are invited to do so by writing to the Company Secretary at the address given on
page 89.

Voting on all resolutions at the AGM will be on a poll. The proxy votes cast, including defails of votes withheld are disclosed to those in atiendance
atthe meeting and the resulfs are published on the Company's website and announced via a Regulatory Information Service. Where a significant
number of votes have been lodged against a proposed resolution (being greater than 20%), in accordance with the AIC Code published in
February 2019, itis the Board's policy that the Board will identfy those shareholders and further understand their views to address the concerns
of the Company's shareholders. At the 2024 AGM a significant number of votes (42%) were cast against the resolution authorising the Company
to make market acquisitions of its own shares. As it was not expected that this power would be used other than in exceptional circumstances it was
not considered necessary to seek feedback and this will not be proposed again.

Board Meetings

The Board meefs at least four times a year. Certain matters are considered at all Board meetings including Portfolio composition and asset
realisation strategy, capital repayments and income distributions by way of dividend, NAV and share price performance and associated matters
such as asset allocation, risks, strategy, marketing and investor relaions, peer group information and industry issues. Consideration is also given
to administration and corporate governance matiers, where applicable reports are received from Board commitiees.

Directors unable o attend a board meefing are provided with the board papers and can discuss issues arising in an informal meeting with the
Chairman or another non-execufive Director.

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring the Directors receive complete information in a fimely manner concerning all matters which require
consideration by the Board. Through the Board's ongoing shareholder engagementand the reports produced by each key service provider, the
Directors are satisfied that suficient information is provided so as to ensure such matters are taken into consideration as part of the Board's
decision-making process.

Attendance at scheduled meetings of the Board and its committees in the 2024 financial year
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MANAGEMENT
AUDIT ENGAGEMENT  REMUNERATION  INSIDE INFORMATION

BOARD COMMITTEE COMMTTEE COMMITTEE COMMITTEE
Number of meetings during the year 4 4 1 1 1
John Hallam 4 N/A 1 1 1
Christopher Legge 4 4 1 1 1
Micheel Holmberg 4 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Stephen Vakil 4 4 1 1 1

In additon to these meetngs, 5 ad-hoc board and board commitee meefings were held during the year for various matters, primarily of an
administrative nature. These meefings were atiended by those Directors available at the time.

Board Committees
The Board has established an Audit Commitiee, Management Engagement Conmitiee, Remuneration Committee and an Inside Information
Commitiee with defined terms of reference and duties. Further details of these commitiees can be found in their reports on pages 42 to 49. The

terms of reference for each commitiee can be found on the Company's website at www.nbddif.com.

The Board feels that due to the size and structure of the Company, establishing a Nomination Commitiee is unnecessary and that the Board as a
whole will consider matters relating to appointment of Directors.

For and on behalf of the Board.

John Hallam Christopher Legge

Chairman Director

29 April 2025 29 April 2025
Audit Committee Report

Membership

Christopher Legge - Chairman (Independent non-executive Director)
Stephen Vakil (Senior Independent non-executive Director)
Key Objectives

The Audit Commitiee aims t ensure efective governance over the appropriateness of the Company's financial reporting including the
adequacy of related disclosures, the performance of the external auditor, and the management of the Company's systems of internal controls
and business risks.

Responsibilities

e reviewing the Company's financial resulfs announcements and Financial Statements and monitoring compliance with relevant statutory
and listing requirements;

e reporting o the Board on the appropriateness of the Company's accounting policies and practices including critical accounting policies
and pracfices;

. advising the Board on whether the Audit Commitiee believes the Annual Report and Financial Statements, taken as a whole, is far,
balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders o assess the Company's performance,
business model and strategy;

o overseeing the relationship with the external auditor;

e considering the financial and other implications of the independence of the auditors arising from any non-audit services to be provided by
the auditor;

e reviewing the efectiveness of the Company's risk management framework, taking info account the reports on the internal controls of the
Company's service providers;

e considering the nature and extent of the significant risks the Company faces in achieving its strategic objectives; and

o compiing a reporton the Audit Commitiee's activiies to be included in the Company's Annual Report
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Audit Committee Meetings

The Audit Commitiee meets at least three imes a year with only its members and the Audit Commitiee Secretary having the right to atiend.
However, other Directors and representafives of the Investment Manager and Administrator will be invited o atiend such meefings on a
regular basis and other non-members may be invited to atiend all or part of the meefing as and when appropriate and necessary. The
Company's independent auditor, KPMG Channel Islands Limited ("KPMG"), is also invited on a regular basis.

The Audit Commitiee determines, in conjunction with KPMG, whether it is necessary for it to meet the auditors without the Investment
Manager or other service providers being present

Main Activities during the year

The Audit Commitiee assisted the Board in carrying outits responsibilities in relation to financial reporting requirements, risk managementand
the assessment of internal controls. Italso manages the Company's relationship with the external auditor. Meefings ofthe Commitiee generally
take place prior to a Company Board meeting. The Audit Commitiee reports o the Board as part of a separate agenda item on its activiies
and maters of parficular relevance o Board members in the conduct of their work.

The Board requested that the Audit Commitize advise them on whether it believes the Annual Report, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's performance, business model and
strategy and the Audit Commitize confirmed this o be the case.

The Audit Commitiee's terms of reference were updated during the year and can be found on the Company's website www.nbddif.com.
Atifs four meetings during the year, the Commitiee focused on:
Financial Reporting

The primary role of the Audit Commitiee in relafion to financial reporting is to review with the Investment Manager, Administrator and the
external auditor the appropriateness of the Annual Financial Statements concentrating on, amongst other matters:

o the quality and acceptability of accounting policies and practices;

. the clarity of the disclosures and compliance with financial reporing standards and relevant financial and governance reporiing
requirements;

e material areas in which significant judgements have been applied or there has been discussion with the external auditor;

o the viability of the Company, taking info account the principal and emerging risks it faces;

. whether the Annual Report and Financial Statements, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders o assess the Company's performance, business model and strategy; and

e any correspondence from regulators in relation to financial reporting.

To aid its review, the Audit Commitiee considered reports from the Investment Manager, Administrator, Sub-Administrator, Company
Secrefary and also reports from the external auditor on the outcomes of their half-year review and annual audit

The members of the Audit Commitiee had meetings with KPMG, where their findings in respect of both the Interim Review and the Annual
Audit were reported.

Significant Issues

In relation to the Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024, the significant issue considered by the Audit
Commitiee was the valuation of the Company's investments.

The Commitize received a report from the Investment Manager on the valuation of the Portiolios and on the assumptions used in valuing the
Portiolios. Itanalysed the investment Portlios of the Company in terms of investment mix, fair value hierarchy and valuation and held detailed
discussions with the Investment Manager regarding the methodology and procedures used in valuing the Portiolios.

The Commitiee discussed in depth with KPMG their approach to tesiing the appropriateness and robustness of the valuation methodology
applied by the Investment Manager to the Company's Portlios. KPMG did not report any significant differences between e valuations used
by the Company and the results of the work performed during their tesing process. Based on their above review and analysis the Audit
Commitiee confrmed thatitis safisfied with the valuation of the investments.
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Internai Lontrois ana KIskK vianagement

The Audit Commitiee has established a process for identfying, evaluaing and managing any major risks faced by the Company. The
process is subject o regular review by the Board and accords with the AIC Code.

The Audit Commitiee has overall responsibility for the Company's system of internal financial and operating controls and for reviewing ifs
efectiveness. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure fo achieve the Company's business
objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has underiaken a ull review of the Company's business risks, which have been analysed and recorded in a risk matrix, which is
updated regularly and is formally reviewed at each quarterly Board meeing. The Board receives, each quarter, a formal report rom the
Investment Manager which details the steps faken o monitor and manage the areas of risk including those tat are not directy the
responsibility of the Investment Manager and which reports the defails of any known internal control failures.

The Company itself does not have an internal audit function, butinstead relies on the internal audit functions and departments of the Investment
Manager. The Commitiee was safisfied that this function provided significant control to help mitigate the risks to the Company.

In addifon, the Audit Commitiee annually receives and reviews Internal Controls reports from independent sources, in respect of the
Administrator, Sub-Administrator, Registrar, Custodian and Investment Manager.

The Investment Manager has established an internal confrol framework o provide reasonable but not absolute assurance on the
eflectiveness of the internal controls operated on behalf of its clients. The effectiveness of the internal controls is assessed by the Investment
Manager's compliance and risk department on an ongoing basis.

The Board's assessment of the Company's principal risks is setouton pages 82 t 83.

By means of the procedures set out above, the Audit Commitiee confirms that it has reviewed the eflectiveness of the Company's system of
internal controls for the year ended 31 December 2024 and o the date of approval of this Annual Report and that no concerns have been
noted.

External Audit

The effectiveness of the external audit process is dependent on appropriate audit risk identiication at the start of the audit cycle. The Audit
Commitiee received a defailed audit plan from KPMG, identfying their assessment of these significant risks. For the 2024 financial year the
significant risk identfied was in relation o the valuation of investments. This risk is tracked through the year and the Commitiee has considered
the work done by the auditor to challenge managements assumptions and estimates around these areas. The Commitiee has assessed the
efectiveness of the audit process in addressing these matters through the reports received from KPM G at both the halfyear and year end. In
additon, the Commitiee has sought feedback from the Investment Manager, the Administrator and Sub-administrator on the effectiveness of
the audit process. For the 2024 financial year the Commitiee is safisfied that there had been appropriate focus and challenge on the primary
areas of auditrisk and assessed the quality of the audit process to be appropriate.

The Audit Commitiee considers the re-appointment of the external auditor, including the rofation of the audit pariner, and assesses their
independence on an annual basis. The external auditor is required to rotate the audit pariner responsible for the Company audit every five
years. Andrew J. Salisbury, KPMG audit director, took over the role as lead audit engagement partner for the year ended 31 December
2024.

KPMG has been the Company's external audibor since its stock exchange lising in 2010 (14 years). The Company has not formally
tendered the audit since then. The Audit Commitiee would normally consider puting the Company's audit out to tender atleast every ten years
(with the maximum duration of a confinuous audit engagement being twenty years) and has given consideration to doing so tis coming year.
However it concluded that, given the current expectation of the wind down of the Company share classes, it was notin the bestinterests of the
Company to do so. In ifs assessment of the independence of the auditor, the Audit Commitiee receives details of any relationships between the
Company and KPMG that may have a bearing on their independence and receives confirmation from them that they are independent of the
Company.

The Audit Commitiee approved the fees for audit services for 2024 after a review of the level and nature of work to be performed. The Board
was satisfied hat the fees were appropriate for the scope of the work required.

Non-Audit Services

To safeatiard the ohiecfivitv and indenendence of the external auditor from hecomina comoromised. the Audit Commitiee has a nolicv
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governing the engagement of the external auditor o provide non-audit services. The Commitiee made amendments 1o this policy in April 2023
and follows the certain provisions of the FRC's Revised Ethical Standard 2019 relafing o non-audit services as it applies o public interest
entiies. The Audit Commitiee must be advised by the commissioning entity/person, and by the audit frm, of all assignments underteken by
the external auditors that fall within the pre-approved categories as soon as practicable.

All non-audit services require prior approval by the Audit Commitiee. In respect of each calendar year the Audit Commitiee monifors the
provision of non-audit services by receiving at least half yearly a list of the non-audit services provided (and expected to be provided) by the
external auditor in that calendar year, and the fees involved, so that the Audit Commitiee can consider the impact on auditors' objecivity. The
Audit Commitiee's policy on the Independence of External Auditor (including the provision of non-audit services) is available on its website at
www.nbddif.com.

Auditor's Remuneration

31 DECEMBER 2024

3]

Audit (Guernsey) 200,400
Audit related services (review of interim report) (Guernsey) 40,900
Total 241,300

Appointment and Independence

The Audit Commitiee has therefore recommended to the Board that, should the Company not be placed info liquidation beforehand, KPMG be
reappointed as external auditor for the year ended 31 December 2025, and o authorise the Directors o defermine their remuneration.
Accordingly, a resolufion proposing the reappointment of KPM G as the Company's auditor will be put o the shareholders at the next AGM.

There are no contractual obligations restricing the Commitiee's choice of external auditor and the Company does not indemnify the external
auditor.

The Commitee's activiies formed part of the Board evaluation performed in the year. Defails of this process can be found under

"Performance evaluation" on page 38. The Commitiee was satisfied that it had undertaken ifs duties eficienty and efectively.

Christopher Legge
On behalf of the Audit Commitiee
29 April 2025

Management Engagement Commitiee Report

Membership

Stephen Vakil - Chairman (Senior Independent non-executive Director)

John Hallam (Chairman ofthe Company and Independent non-executive Director)
Christopher Legge (Independent non-executve Director)

Key Objectives

To review performance of all service providers (including the Invesiment Manager).

Responsibilities

e Toreview annually the performance, relaionships and contractual terms of all service providers (including the Investment Manager);
e Review and make recommendations on any proposed amendment to the Investment Manager Agreement ("IMA");
e Toreview the performance of, and contractual arrangements with the Investment Manager including:
- Monibor and evaluate the Investment Manager's performance and, if necessary, provide appropriate guidance;
- Toconsider whether an independent appraisal of the Investment Manager's services should be made;
- Toreview the level and method of remuneration and notice period, using peer group comparisons (where available); and
- To ensure that the Investment Manager has a sound system of risk management and internal controls and that these are

maintinad in eafani iard charahnldare' iniactmant and tha Camnani/'e aceate
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Committee Meetings

Only members of the Management Engagement Commitiee and the Secrefary have the right to atiend Commitiee meefings. However,
representatives of the Invesiment Manager and Administrator may be invited by the Commitiee to atiend meetings as and when appropriate.

Main Activities during the year

The Management Engagement Commitiee met once during the year and reviewed performance, standard and value for money of the
Company's service providers and the Investment Manager. The Management Engagement Commitiee reviewed the contraciual erms,
disaster recovery and business confinuity arrangements, information security arrangements, defails of ani-bribery and corrupfion policies,
ant-faciliation of tax evasion policies, and the level of professional indemnity insurance of all service providers as at 12 November 2024,
including the Investment Manager.

The Management Engagement Commitiee reviewed the Terms of Reference for the Commitiee and considered that they remained
appropriate.

Continued Appointment of the Investment Manager and Other Service Providers

The Board reviews investment performance at each Board meefing and the performance of the Company's service providers are reviewed
annually as part of the Management Engagement Commitiee's annual review.

Taking info consideraion supplementary guidance issued by the AIC in 2020 which described certain measures by which invesiment
companies may assess the relationship with the manager, as in previous years the Board undertook an enhanced qualitative assessment of
the performance of the Investment Manager. The feedback from this assessment confirmed that the Investment Manager's focus remained
on the performance of their core duties, and that there existed a high level of congruence between the duties of the Investment Manager and
the objectives of the Company. The Board does not consider it necessary o obtain an independent appraisal of the Investment Manager's
services.

As a result of the 2024 annual review itis the opinion of the Directors that the confinued appointment of the current service providers, including
the Investment Manager, on the terms agreed is in the best interests of the Company's shareholders as a whole. The Investment Manager
has extensive investment management resources and wide experience in managing portolios of distressed investments.

Stephen Vakil
On behalf of the Management Engagement Commitiee
29 April 2025

Inside Information Committee Report

Membership

John Hallam (Chairman ofthe Company and Independent non-executive Director)
Michael Holmberg (non-executve Director)

Christopher Legge (Independent non-executive Director)

Stephen Vakil (Senior Independent non-executive Director)

Key Objectives

To identfy inside information and monitor the disclosure and control of inside information.
Responsibilities
o |dentfy inside information as it arises;

» Review and prepare projectinsider lists as required; and
o Consider the need to announce or to delay the announcement of inside information.



Committee Meetings

Only members of te Inside Information Commitiee and the Secrefary have the right o atiend Inside Information Commitiee meefings.
However, representatives of the Investment Manager and Administrator may be invited by the Inside Informaion Commitiee o attend
meetings as and when appropriate.

Main Activities During the year

The Inside Information Commitiee met on 14 March 2024 and the Inside Information Commitiee reviewed its Terms of Reference, the
Company's policies and procedures for inside informafion and personal dealing. There was no update made on the Inside Information

Commitiee's terms of reference in 2024 and itwas agreed that the policies and procedures remained relevant and accurate.

There were no delays o the disclosure of information during the year.

John Hallam
On behalf of the Inside Information Commitiee
29 April 2025

Remuneration Committee Report

Membership

Stephen Vaki - Chairman (Senior Independent non-executive Director)

John Hallam (Chairman of the Company and Independent non-executive Director)
Christopher Legge (Independent non-executive Direcfor)

Key Objectives

To review the ongoing appropriateness and relevance of the Company's remuneration policy.

Responsibilities

o Determine the remuneration of the Direcors;

o Prepare an Annual Report on Directors' remuneration;

o Consider the need to appoint external remuneration consuliants; and

o Oversee the performance evaluation of the Board; its conmitiees and individual directors.

Committee Meetings

Only members of the Remuneration Commitiee and the Secrefary have the right to attend Remuneration Conmitiee meetings. However,
representaiives of the Investment Manager and Administrator may be invited by the Remuneration Commitiee o atiend meetings as and when
appropriate.

Main Activities During the year

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year and reviewed the Directors' remuneration. The Remuneration Committee's terms of
reference were updated during the year and can be found on the Company's website www.nbddif. com

The Remuneration Commitiee considered the Directors' Remuneration and agreed that the current policy remained appropriate.

A detailed Directors' Remuneration report to shareholders fromthe Remuneration Commitiee is contained below.

Stephen Vakil
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On behalf of the Remuneration Commitiee
29 April 2025

Directors' Remuneration Report

Annual Statement

The following report describes how the Board has applied the principles relating to Directors' remuneration. An ordinary resolution to rafify this
reportwill be proposed at the AGM to be held on 30 June 2025.

Directors' Fees

The Company paid the following fees to the Directors for the year ended 31 Decenber 2024. These fees have remained unchanged since 2014.

TOTAL BOARD TOTAL BOARD FEES

ROLE FEES () (£)
John Hallam Chairman 60,000 10,000
Michael HoIrrberg1 non-executive Director - -
Christopher Legge non-executive Director and Chairman of the Audit Commitiee 50,000 10,000
Stephen Vakil non-executive Director, Chairman of the Remuneration

Commitiee and Chairman of Management Engagement

Commitiee 45,000 10,000
Total 155,000 30,000

The Company paid the following fees to the Directors for the year ended 31 Decenber 2023:

TOTAL BOARD TOTAL BOARD FEES

ROLE FEES () (£)
John Hallam Chairman 60,000 10,000
Michael Holnberg1 non-executive Director - -
Christopher Legge non-executive Director and Chairman of the Audit Commitiee 50,000 10,000
Stephen Vakil non-executive Director, Chairman of the Remuneration

Commitiee and Chairman of Management Engagement

Commitiee 45,000 10,000
Total 155,000 30,000

1 Michee! Holmberg has waived his right to Director fees.
No other remuneration was paid or payable by the Company during the year to any of the Directors (2023 Nil).
Remuneration Policy

The determination of the Directors' fees is a matter dealt with by the Board. The Board considers the remuneration policy annually to ensure
that it remains appropriately posiioned. The Board reviewed the fees paid o the boards of similar invesiment companies. No Director is
involved in decisions relafing to his or her own remuneration.

No Director has a service confract with the Company and Director appoinfments may be terminated at any tme with no compensation
payable at ermination.

The Company's policy is for the Directors i be remunerated in the form of fees, payable quarterly in arrears. No Director has any enfiiement
to a pension and the Company has notawarded any share options or long-term performance incentives to any of the Directors. No element of
the Directors' remuneration is performance related.

Directors are authorised o claim reasonable expenses fom the Company in relaion o the performance of their duies. The Company's
policy is that the fees payable o the Directors should reflect the me spent by the Board on the Company's affairs and the responsibiliies
borne by the Directors and should be suficient to enable high calibre candidates to be recruited. The policy is for the Chairman of the Board
and Chairman of the Audit Committee fo be paid a higher fee than the other Directors in recognition of their more onerous roles and addifional
time spent performing their duties. The Board may amend the level of remunerafion paid within the limits of the Company's Articles. In 2017,
the remuneration policy needed to be reviewed by atiribuiing the company as a whole to the individual share classes. The aggregate
remuneration for each director has not chanaed since 2014.



The remuneration policy reflects the changing status of the Company as the existing Portiolios are realised as follows:

Company NBDDFee  NBDXFee NBDG Fee Total Total
Fee (USD) (USD) (USD) (GBP) (USD) (GBP)
Chairman 40,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 60,000 10,000
Audit Committee Chairman 30,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 50,000 10,000
Other Directors 25,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 45,000 10,000
Directors' Fees Policy
MAXIMUM POTENTIAL PERFORMANCE METRICS
OBJECTIVE OPERATION VALUE USED
To recognise ime spentand the  Directors' fees are setby the Current fee levels are shown  Direcfors are notremunerated
responsibilites borne and o Board. in the remuneration report based on performance and
atiract high calibre candidates are noteligible to participate in
who have the necessary Annual fees are paid quarterly in any performance related
experience and skils. arrears. arrangements.
Fees are reviewed annually and

againstthose for Directors in
companies of similar scale and
complexity.

Fees were last reviewed on 12
November 2024.

Directors do notreceive benefits
and do not parfcipate in any
incentive or pension plans.

Service Contracts and Policy on Payment of Loss of Office

The Directors' appointments are not subject o any durafion or limitaion. Any Director may resign in writng at any fme. Direcfors'
appointments are reviewed during the annual Board evaluation. No Director has a service contract with the Company. Directors have agreed
letiers of appointment with the Company.

As defailed above, all of the independent non-executive Directors are re-elected at the frstAGM after their appointment and are then subject o
annual re-elecion. The names and biographies of the Directors holding ofices at the date of this report are listed above.

Dates of Directors' Letters of Appointment

Copies of the Directors' lefiers of appointment are available for inspection by shareholders atthe Company's Registered Office and will be
available atthe AGM. The dates of their letier of appointments are shown below.

DATE OF LETTER OF APPOINTMENT

John Hallam 20 April 2010 (amended on 8 May 2018)
Michael Holmberg 20 April 2010 (amended on 22 August 2018)
Stephen Vakil 5 February 2016 (amended on 8 May 2018)
Christopher Legge 12 April 2018

Directors' Interests

The Company has not set any requirements or guidelines for Directors o own shares in the Company. The beneficial interests of the
Directors and their connected persons in the Company's shares at 31 December 2024 are shown in the table below:

NO. OF ORDINARY NO. OF EXTENDED  NO. OF NEW GLOBAL TOTAL NO. OF
DIRECTOR SHARES LIFE SHARES SHARES SHARES
John Hallam - 35,468 30,216 65,684
Michael Holmberg - 15,661 31,590 47,251
Christopher Legge - - - -
Stephen Vakil - - 16,482 16,482

Advisors to the Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Commitiee has not sought the paid advice or professional services by any outside person in respect of its consideration
~f tha Nirantare' raminarafinn Tha Ramiinarainn Mammittaa eniinht inni it ffnm Nlantharnar Rarman Eiirana | imitad ("NIREL™ anAd tha
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Brokers during its deliberations of the remuneration policy.

Stephen Vakil
On behalf of the Remunerafion Commitiee
29 April 2025

Directors' Responsibiliies Statementin respect of the Annual Reportand the Financial Statements
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Reportand financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they have elected to prepare the
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and applicable law.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of its profit or loss for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

o selectsuitable accounting policies and then apply them consistenty;
o make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevantand reliable;

. state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements;

o assess the Group's or the Company's ability to coninue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and

o use the going concern basis of accounting unless liquidation is imminent
The directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records tat are suficient to show and explain the Company's fransactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy atany fime the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply
with the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008. They are responsible for such internal confrol as they determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for
taking such steps as are reasonably open to them o safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities.

The directors of the Company have elected o prepare consolidated financial statements for the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024
as the parent of the Group in accordance with Section 244(5) of the Law.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Company's website.
Legislation in Guernsey governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictons. The
directors who hold office at the date of approval of this Director's Report confirmthat so far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information
of which the Conpany's auditor is unaware, and that each Director has taken all the steps they ought to have taken as a director o make
themselves aware of any relevant auditinformation and to establish that the Conpany's auditor is aware of that information.

Responsibility statement of the directors in respect of the Annual Report

We confrmthat fo the best of our knowledge:

o the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Group; and

o the Annual Report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the issuer, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertaintes that they face.

We consider the Annual Report and accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group's posiion and performance, business model and sfrategy.

John Hallam Christopher Legge
Chairman Director
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of NB Distressed Debt Investment Fund Limited

Our opinion is unmodified

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of NB Distressed Debt Investment Fund Limited (the "Company")
and its subsidiaries (together, the "Group"), which comprise the consolidated statement of assets and liabilities including
the consolidated condensed schedule of investments as at 31 December 2024, the consolidated statements of operations,
changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024, and of the Group's financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended;

e are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; and

e complywith the Companies (Guermnsey) Law, 2008.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our
responsibilities are described below. We hawe fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of
the Company and Group in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard as required by the
Crown Dependencies' Audit Rules and Guidance. We believe that the audit evidence we hawve obtained is a sufficient'and
appropriate basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters: our assessment of the risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement ﬁwhether or
not due to fraud) identified by us, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of
resources in the audit; and directing the efiorts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters. In arriving at our audit opinion above,

from 2023):

e key audit matter was as follows (unchanged

\aluation of Investments, at fair value
("Investments")

36,677,885 (2023: 60,883,590)

Refer to the Audit Committee Report on
ga e 42, the Consolidated Condensed

chedule of Investments on page 63,
Note 2 Summary of Accounting
Policies, and Note 2(f) Fair Value of
Financial Instruments

Basis:

The Group's investment portfolio is
carried at fair value in accordance with
US generally accepted accounting
principles. It represents_a significant
FI’OpO[‘tIO!’] (58% (2023: 76%)), and is
he principal driver, of the Group's net
asset value.

The Group's holdings in quoted and
unquoted equity and debt investments,
representing 31% of the fair value of
investments, are valued at their bid
price using broker quotes (includin

use of single broker quotes) or thirt

party

i ricing senice providers (the
"Price "

otes").

Our audit procedures included:
Control evaluation:

We assessed and evaluated the design
and implementation of the control in
place over the valuation of investments.

Challenging managements’
assumptions and inputs including use
of KPMG valuation specialists:

For Investments where market quotes
were available, we obtained prices from
third party data sources and pricing
vendors.

For Internally Generated Valuations and

single broker quoted investments, we

performed, as applicable, the following

&rocedures with the support of our
PMG valuation specialists:

Where no Price Quotes are available or
they may not be representative of fair
value, the Grour) will utilise the
resources of the Investment Manager
to au?ment its own fair value analysis
to determine the most appropriate fair
value for such investments (the
"Internally Generated Valuations"). 69%
of the fair value of Investments were
valued using Internally Generated
Valuations.

Risk:

The valuation of the Group's
investments is considered a significant
area of our audit, given that it
represents the majority of the net
assets of the Group.

The valuation risk for both the Internally
Generated \aluations and single
broker quoted investment valuations
incorporate both a risk of fraud and
error given the significance of
estimates and judgments that may be
|n\|/olved in the determination of fair

e \We obtained and read the fair
valuation memoranda prepared by
the Investment Manager, including
their fair value ‘analysis to
corroborate broker prices’ against
relevant market metrics  and
valuation methods;

o \We assessed the appropriateness
of the waluation approach and
methodology applied to each
investment " and where relevant,
derived an independent reference
price;

e We compared the assumptions
used in the valuations to obsenable

market data or  supporting
documentation;

e \We corroborated significant inputs
used to supporting documentation;

o \We considered market transactions
in close proximity to the year end and
assessed their appropriateness as

hainA ranracantatia Af fair \mhia-
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and

o \We assessed the effect of the
investee entitys ~ financial
performance upon the fair value.

Assessing disclosures:

We considered the Group's disclosures
(Note 2(c)) in relation to the use of
estimates "and judgements regarding
the valuation of investments and the
Group's_investment valuation policies
(Note 2(f)) adopted and fair value
disclosures.

Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit

Materiality for the consolidated financial statements as a whole was set at 1,300,000, determined with reference to a
benchmark of group net assets of 63,495,265 of which it represents approximately 2.0% (2023: 2.0%).

In line with our audit methodology, our procedures on individual account balances and disclosures were performed to a
lower threshold, performance materiality so as to reduce to an acceptable level the risk that individually immaterial
misstatements in individual account balances add up to a material amount across the financial statements”as a whole.
Performance materiality for the Group was set at 75% (2023: 75%) of materiality for the financial statements as a whole,
which equates to 975,000. We applied this percentage in our determination of performance materiality because we did not
identify any factors indicating an elevated level of risk.

We reported to the Audit Committee any corrected or uncorrected identified misstatements exceeding 65,000, in addition to
other identified misstatements that warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

Qur audit of the Group was undertaken to the materiality level specified above, which has informed our identification of
sg:]nlﬁcant risks of material misstatement and the associated audit procedures performed in those areas as detailed
above.

The group team performed the audit of the Group as if it was a single aggregated set of financial information. The audit was
performed using the materiality level set out above and covered 100% of total Group net increase in net assets resulting
from operations and total Group assets and liabilities.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the consolidated financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to
liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the Group and the
Companys financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties
that could have cast significant doubt over their ability to continue as a going concem for at least a year from the date of
approval of the consolidated financial statements (the "going concern period").

In our evaluation of the directors' conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Group and the Company's business
model and analysed how those risks might affect the Group and the Company’s financial resources or ability to continue
operations over the going concern period. The risks that we considered most likely to affect the Group and the Company's
financial resources or ability to continue operations ower this period was avallablllf{/ of capital to meet operating costs and
other financial commitments.

We considered whether this risk could plausibly affect the liquidity in the going concern period .b)( comparing severe, but
lausible downside scenarios that could arise from this risk against the level of available financial resources indicated by
e Company's financial forecasts.

We considered whether the going concern disclosure in note 2(a) to the financial statements gives a full and accurate
description of the directors' assessment of going concern.

Qur conclusions based on this work:

e we consider that the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements is appropriate;

e we hawe not identified, and concur with the directors' assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty related to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the the Group and the Company's
ability to continue as a going concem for the going concern period; and

e we found the going concern disclosure in the notes to the consolidated financial statements to be acceptable.

Howewer, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes that are
inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are not a guarantee
that the Group and the Company will continue in operation.

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations - ability to detect
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud
To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks") we assessed events or conditions that could indicate

_anlindoeg ive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk assessment procedures
included:

e enquiring of management as to the Group's policies and procedures to prevent and detect fraud as well as enquiring
whether management have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud;

e reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance; and

e using analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account possible incentives or pressures to misstate performance and
our overall knowledge of the control environment, we perform procedures to address the risk of management owerride of
controls, in particular the risk that management may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries, and the risk
of bias in accounting estimates such as valuation of single broker quoted investments and Internally Generated Valuations.

On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud risk related to revenue recognition because the Group's revenue streams are
simple in nature with respect to accounting policy choice, and are easily verifiable to external data sources or agreements
with little or no requirement for estimation from management. We did not'identify any additional fraud risks.

We performed procedures including:

e identifiina intirnal entriee and nthar adilietmente tn teet haced nn rick criteria anAd ramnarina anv identified entriee tn
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suppc;F't'i'rTé Jdoc:umentation;
e incorporating an element of unpredictability in our audit procedures; and

e assessing significant accounting estimates for bias.

Further detail in respect of valuation of single broker quoted investments and Internally Generated Valuations is set outin the
key audit matter section of in this report.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the consolidated
financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience and through discussion with management (as
reﬂl\Jlred by auditing standards), and from inspection of the Group's regulatory and legal correspondence, and discussed
with management the policies and procedures regardlngl compliance with laws and regulations. As the Group is regulated,
our assessment of risks involved gaining an understanding of the control environment including the entitys procedures for
complying with regulatory requirements.

The Group is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the consolidated financial statements incIuding? financial
reporting legislation and taxation legislation and we assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as
part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

The Group is subject to other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance could have a material effect
on amounts or disclosures in the consolidated financial statements, for instance through the imposition of fines or litigation
or impacts on the Group and the Company's ability to operate. We identified financial services regulation as being the area
most likely to have such an effect, recognising the regulated nature of the Group's activities and its legal form. Auditing
standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations to enquiry of
management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if an?/. Therefore if a breach of operational regulations
is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence, an audit will not detect that breach.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unawidable risk that we may not have detected some material
misstatements in the consolidated financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit in
accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the
ewvents and transactions reflected in the consolidated financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures
required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remains a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as this may inwolve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit procedures are designed to detect
material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing non-compliance or fraud and cannot be expected to detect
non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
annual report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit opinion or any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,

in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or

our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise a{)pears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
erformed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
ave nothing to report in this regard.

We have nothing to report on other matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

e the Company has not kept proper accounting records; or
e the consolidated financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

e we hawe not received all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief are necessary
for the purpose of our audit.

Respective responsibilities
Directors' responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on pafge 53, the directors are responsible for: the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements including being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error; assessing the Group and Companys ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless
liquidation is imminent.

Auditor's responsibilities

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor's report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Msstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of the consolidated financial statements.

Afuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of this report and restrictions on its use by persons other than the Company's members,
as a body

This report is made solely to the Companys members, as a body, in accordance with section 262 of the Companies
(Guernsey) Law, 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Companys members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted bé/law,

we do not aooePt or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's members, as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Andrew J. Salisbury
For and on behalf of KPMG Channel Islands Limited
Chartered Accountants and Recognised Auditors
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Guemsey
29 April 2025

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities

Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabiliies

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024 AND 31 DECEVBER 2023

(EXPRESSED IN US DOLLARS EXCEPT WHERE STATED OTHERWISE) 31 DECEMBER 2024 31 DECEMBER 2023
Assets
Investments, at fair value (2024: cost of 60,011,510; 2023: cost of 90,284,529) 36,677,885 60,883,590
Forward currency confracts, at fair value 2,459,931 18,235
Total refum swaps, at fair value (2024: cost of Nil, 2023: cost of Nil) - 3,648,201
Cash and cash equivalents 14,403,459 4,809,578
Restricted cash:
Forward currency confracts collateral - 790,000
Total refumn swap collateral 10,970,000 10,970,000
64,511,275 81,119,604
Other assets
Interest receivables 763,745 691,898
Withholding tax receivable - 251,051
Other receivables and prepay ments 53,065 57,691
Total assets 65,328,085 82,120,244
Liabilities
Forward currency confracts, at fair value 11,319 1,545,570
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 375,287 305,627
Credit default swap, at fair value (2024: cost of 61,957; 2023: cost of 19,860) 19,525 21,309
Total refum swaps, at fair value (2024: cost of Nil, 2023: cost of Nil) 126,689 -
Due to broker 1,300,000 -
Total liabilities 1,832,820 1,962,506
Net assets 63,495,265 80,157,738
Net assets attributable to Ordinary Shares (shares 2024: 15,382, 770;
2023: 15,382, 770) 11,624,114 12,415,231
Net asset value per Ordinary Share 0.7557 0.8071
Net assets attributable to Extended Life Shares (shares 2024: 38,731,819;
2023: 44,234,790) 35,907,610 45,614,485
Net asset value per Extended Life Share 0.927 1.0312
Net assets attributable to New Global Shares (shares 2024: 25,123,440;
2023: 27,821,698) £12,746,359 £17,358,035
Net asset value per New Global Share £0.5073 £0.6239
Net assets attributable to New Global Shares (USD equivalent) 15,963,541 22,128,022
Net asset value per New Global Share (USD equivalent) 0.6354 0.7954

The Financial Statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 April 2025 and signed on its behalf by :

John Hallam Christopher Legge

Chairman Director

The accompanying notes below are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Operations

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 AND 31 DECEMBER 2023

31 DECEMBER
(EXPRESSED IN US DOLLARS) 31 DECEMBER 2024 2023
Income
Interest income 3,112,539 2,899,273




3,112,539 2,899,273

Expenses

Professional and other expenses 517,253 531,886

Audit fee 305,193 316,352

Directors' fees and expenses 192,157 193,450

Company secrefary fee 114,400 116,883

Administration fee 86,775 87,547

D&Oinsurance fee 69,940 105,471

Loan administration and custody fees 28412 30,743
1,314,130 1,382,337

Net investment income 1,798,409 1,516,936

Realised and unrealised (loss)/gain from investments and foreign exchange

transactions

Net realised loss on investments, credit defauit swap, total refum swap and forward

currency transactions (15,957,036) (92,697)

Net change in unrealised gain on investments, credit default swap, tofal retum swap and

forward currency fransactions 6,291,633 1,542,286

Realised and unrealised (loss)/gain from investments and foreign exchange

transactions (9,665,403) 1,449,589

Net (decrease)/increase in net assets resulting from operations (7,866,994) 2,966,525

The accompanying notes below are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEVBER 2024
31 DECEMBER 2024 31 DECEMBER 2024 31 DECEMBER 2024

ORDINARY EXTENDED LIFE NEW GLOBAL 31 DECEMBER 2024
(EXPRESSED IN US DOLLARS) SHARES SHARES SHARES AGGREGATED
Net assets at the beginning of the year 12,415,231 45,614,485 22,128,022 80,157,738
Net investment income 10,160 773,862 1,014,387 1,793,409
Net realised loss on investments, credit defauit swap
and forward currency transactions (1,009,363) (14,426,978) (520,6%) (15,957,036)
Net change in unrealised gainv(loss) on investments,
credit default swap and forward currency transactions 208,086 10,092,881 (4,009,334) 6,291,633
Dividends - (654,675) (772,349) (1,427,024)
Shares redeemed during the year - (5:491,965) (1,876,490) (7,368,455)
Net assets at the end of the year 11,624,114 35,907,610 15,963,541 63,495,265

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEVBER 2023
31 DECEMBER 2023 31 DECEMBER 2023 31 DECEMBER 2023

ORDINARY EXTENDED LIFE NEWGLOBAL 31 DECEMBER 2023
(EXPRESSED IN US DOLLARS) SHARES SHARES SHARES AGGREGATED
Net assets at the beginning of the year 11,890,321 58,477,990 24,778,428 95,146,739
Net investment income 21,59 711,561 783,776 1,516,936
Net realised (loss)/gain on investments, credit defauit
swap and forward currency fransactions (229,535) 726,939 (590,101) (92,697)
Net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on investments,
credit default swap and forward currency transactions 732,846 955,658 (146,218) 1,542,286
Shares redeemed during the year - (15,257,663) (2,697,863) (17,955,526)
Net assets at the end of the year 12,415,231 45,614,485 22,128,022 80,157,738

The accompanying notes below are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 AND 31 DECEVBER 2023

(EXPRESSED IN US DOLLARS) 31 DECEMBER 2024 31 DECEMBER 2023
Cash flows from operating activities:

Net (decrease)/increase in net assets resuling from operations (7,866,9%4) 2,966,525
Adjustment to reconcile net (decrease)/increase in net assets resuiting from operations

to net cash flow provided by operations:

Net realised loss on investments, credit defauit swap, total refum swap and forward

currency fransactions 15,957,036 92,697
Net change in unrealised gain on investments, credit default swap, total refum swap and

forward curency transactions (6,291,633) (1,542,286)
Accretion of discount on loans and bonds 56,771 91,550
Changes in due to broker 1,300,000 -
Changes in interest receivable (71,847) (95,874)
Changes in receivables for investments sold - 493,514
Changes in other receivables and prepay ments 4,626 14,613
Changes in withholding tax receivable 251,051 194,711
Changes in accrued expenses and other liabilities (20,340) 112,978
Cash received on setfled forward cumrency contracts and spot currency contracts (34,386) (1,975,089)
Payment in kind interest (2,405,907 (1,965,980)
Purchase of investments' 121,400 (317,725)
Sdle of investments! 16,638,399 16,634,461
Net cash provided by operating activities 17,638,176 14,709,095
Cash flows from financing activities:

Shares redeemed during the year (7,368,455) (17,955,526)
Dividend paid (1,427,024 -
Net cash used in from financing activities (8,795,479) (17,955,526)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 8,842,697 (3,246,431)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,809,578 8,733,589
Restricted cash at the beginning of the year 11,760,000 11,060,000
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (38,816) 2420
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 14,403,459 4,809,578
Restricted cash at the end of the year 10,970,000 11,760,000

Supplemental cash flow information
There were no reorganisations requiring disclosure for the year ended 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: None).

T Included in these figures is 2,405,907 (2023: 1,965,980) of non-cash transactions. These arose due 1o the repricing and restructuring of certain investments

during the year.
The accompanying notes below are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Condensed Schedule of Investments (by financial instrument)

EXTENDED
ORDINARY LIFE  NEW GLOBAL TOTAL
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024 SHARES SHARES SHARES ~ COMPANY
(EXPRESSED IN US DOLLARS) cosT FAIR VALUE %! (%! (%! (%!
Portfolio of Distressed Investments
Bank Debt Investments 47.834,123 21,784,252 0.00 19.18 B3 3431
Private Equity 4,907,312 8,837,916 18.51 17.71 204 1392
Short term Investments
US Treasury Bills 7,210,075 6,055,717 3%.29 5.44 0.00 9.54
Total Investments 60,011,510 36,677,885 53.80 42.33 95.37 51.77
Portfolio per share class
Ordinary Shares 5,459,638 6,254,171 53.80 - - 9.85
Extended Life Shares 2,446,501 15,199,913 - 23 - B4
New Giobal Shares 32,105,345 15,223,801 - - %.37 8.9
60,011,510 36,677,885 53.80 2.33 95.37 51.77

Credit Default Swap



uranary Shares (11,%01) (5,419) (U - - (u.L1)
Extended Life Shares (44,590) (14,02) - (0.04) - (0.02)
(61,957) (19,525) (0.05) (0.04) - (0.03)
Forward Currency Contracts
Assets
Ordinary Shares - 549,259 4.73 - - 0.87
Extended Life Shares - 1,910,672 - 532 - 301
- 2,459,931 473 5.32 - 3.88
Liabilities
Ordinary Shares - (4,289) (0.04) - - (0.01)
Extended Life Shares - (7,030) - (0.2 - (0.01)
- (11,319) (0.04) (0.02) - (0.02)
Total Return Swap?
Ordinary Shares - (35412 (0.30) - - (0.08)
Extended Life Shares - 9,217 - (0.26) - (0.14)
- (126,689) (0.30) (0.26) - (0.20)
T hisis the Fair Value expressed as a percentage of total Ordinary Share NAV, Extended Life Share NAV, New Global Share NAV and Company NAV.
2 The trade claim was stuctured through a fully funded total refum swap with a major US financial institution. See Note 3.
The accompanying notes below are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
EXTENDED
ORDINARY LIFE  NEW GLOBAL TOTAL
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 SHARES SHARES SHARES ~ COMPANY
(EXPRESSED IN US DOLLARS) COST FAIR VALUE (! %! %! %!
Portfolio of Distressed Investments
Bank Debt Investments 45428216 27,125,693 - 20.66 79.99 383
Private Equity 17,783,091 23,948,613 24.40 37.62 17.00 2083
Private Note 19,741,373 3,724,142 222 7.%6 - 4.65
Short term Investments
US Treasury Bils 7,326,847 6,085,142 B2 4.30 - 7.59
Total Investments 90,284,527 60,883,590 59,82 70.14 96.99 75.95
Portfolio per share class
Ordinary Shares 6,993,271 7,426,240 59.82 - - 9.26
Extended Life Shares 48,959,822 31,996,330 - 70.14 - 30.92
New Global Shares 4,331,434 21,461,020 - - 9%.99 26.77
90,284,527 60,883,590 59.82 70.14 96.99 75.95
Credit Default Swap
Ordinary Shares (5,567) (5,973) (0.05) - - (0.01)
Extended Life Shares (14,293) (15,336) - (0.03) - (0.01)
(19,860) (21,309) (0.05) (0.03) - (0.02)
Forward Currency Contracts
Assets
Ordinary Shares - 3,808 0.03 - - -
Extended Life Shares - 14,427 - 0.03 - 0.02
- 18,235 0.03 0.03 - 0.02
Liabilities
Ordinary Shares - (348,550) (2.81) - - (0.44)
Extended Life Shares - (1,197,020) - (263) - (1.49
- (1,545,570) (2.81) (2.63) - (1.93)
Total Return Swap?
Ordinary Shares - 1,018,720 821 - - 1.27
Extended Life Shares - 2,629,481 - 5.76 - 328
- 3,648,201 8.21 5.76 - 4.55

" his is the Fair Vialue expressed as a percentage of total Ordinary Share NAV, Extended Life Share NAV, New Global Share NAV and Company NAV.

2 The trade claim was stuctured through a fully funded tofal retum swap with a major US financial institution. See Note 3.

The accompanying notes below are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Condensed Schedule of Investments

Investments with the following issuers comprised greater than 5% of Total Company NAV
EXTENDED NEW

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024 ORDINARY LIFE GLOBAL

(EXPRESSEDIN US FAIR SHARES SHARES  SHARES

DOLLARS) COUNTRY  INDUSTRY  NOMINAL COoST VALUE (%)! (%! (%!

Investments at fair value

AB Zwolle Term Loan 4.36%

5/31/2025 (Bank Debt Commercial

Investments) Neterands ~ Morigage 21413112 15194276 9,691,940 - 11.61 3380

Package Holdings 1 Containers &

(Private Equity) Luxembourg  Packaging 11,108,610 - 67625% 15.69 13.17 -

Package Holdings 6 Containers &

(Private Equity) Luxembourg  Packagng 2948481 1,893,980 937,623 218 1.83 -

TP Ferro Concesionaria, S.A

EUR Term Loan 25%

6/1/2025 Surface

(Bank Debt Investments) Spain Transport 18,787,735 1853152 3,890,940 - 528 12.14

TP Ferro Concesionaria, S.A

2017 EUR Term Loan B 25%

6/1/2025 (Bank Debt Surface

Investments) Spain Transport 755,816 842,679 156,529 - 021 049

TP Feno PK 5C 7/23 Surface

(Bank Debt Investments) Spain Transport 462210 462,210 R 442 - 0.12 0.29

TP Ferro Concesionaria, S.A

2017 USD Term Loan A 25%

6/1/2025 (Bank Debt Surface

Investments) Spain Transpot 3753886 3,753,886 750,777 - 1.01 235

TP Ferro Concesionaria, S.A

2017 USD Term Loan C 25%

6/1/2025 (Bank Debt Surface

Investments) Spain Transport 36958 32698 65,39 - 0.09 0.2

TP Ferro PIK 5A 25%

6/1/2025 (Bank Debt Surface

Investments) Spain Transport 665658 665658 133,132 - 0.18 042

TP Ferro PIK 5B 25%

6/1/2026 (Bank Debt Surface

Investments) Spain Transport 379839  379,8% 75,968 - 0.10 0.24

Hotel Puerta America PIK T/L Lodging &

EUR (Bank Debt Investments) ~ Spain Casinos 4178566 4599106 4,184,118 - - 26.21

Hotel Puerta America PIK

Addon EUR (Bank Debt Lodging &

Investments) Spain Casinos 1649372 1,796,090 1,651,563 - - 10.35

Hotel Puerta America PIK PPL Lodging &

EUR (Bank Debt Investments) ~ Spain Casinos 1,000,003 1,281,898 1,091,451 - - 6.84

Hotel Puerta America Lodging &

(Private Eauity) Spain Casinos 934 3013333 - - - -

US Treasury N/B 1.500% United

02/15/30 (US Treasury Bills) States United States 6975000 7,270,075 6,055,717 .05 5.28 -
60,011,510 35,540,186 51.92 38.88 93.33

T This is the Fair Value expressed as a percentage of total Ordinary Share NAV, Extended Life Share NAV, New Giobal Share NAV and Company NAV.
The accompanying notes below are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Investments with the following issuers comprised greater than 5% of Total Company NAV

EXTENDED NEW

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 ORDINARY LIFE GLOBAL
(EXPRESSEDIN US FAIR SHARES SHARES = SHARES
DOLLARS) COUNTRY  INDUSTRY  NOMINAL cosT VALUE %! (%! (%!
Investments at fair value

White Energy Holding

Company LLC (Private United

Equity) States Ol & Gas 3%7 917499 11,010,000 - 17.23 14.24
AB Zwolle Term Loan 4.36%

5/31/2025 (Bank Debt Commercial

Investments) Neherlands ~ Mortgage 20223504 14595720 10,879,528 - 10.57 27.37
Package Holdings 1 Containers &

(Private Equity) Luxemboury ~ Packaging 11,108,610 - 9473309 21.32 14.9 -
Package Holdings 6 Contairers &

(Private Equity) Luxembourg  Packaging 248481  1,893980 1,313,564 297 6.38 -
TP Ferro Concesionaria,

S.AEUR Term Loan 25%

6/1/2025 Surface

(Bank Debt Investments) Spain Transpot 18,787,735 1853152 4,150,774 - 457 9.35
TP Ferro Concesionaria,

S.A2017 USD Term Loan A

25% 61112095 (Rank Neht Sirface

TOTAL
COMPANY

(4!

14.91
10.40

1.44

5.9

0.24

0.14

1.15

0.10

0.20

0.12

6.44
254

1.68

9.32
54.67

TOTAL
COMPANY

(N

13.74

13.57
11.82

1.64

5.18
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Investments) Spain Transport 245545 2945545 2,945,545 - 323 6.66

TP Ferro Concesionaria,

S.A2017 EUR Term Loan

B 25% 6/1/2025 (Bank Debt Surface

Investments) Spain Transport 593,063 666,784 655,127 - 0.72 1.48

TP Ferro PIK 5A 25%

6/1/2025 (Bank Debt Surface

Investments) Spain Transport 522,319 522,319 522,319 - 0.57 1.18

TP Ferro PK 5C 7/23 Surface

(Bank Debt Investments) Spain Transport 361,262 361,262 361,262 1.00 0.40 0.82

TP Ferro PIK 5B 25%

6/1/2026 (Bank Debt Surface

Investments) Spain Transport 298,046 298,046 298,046 - 0.3 0.67

TP Ferro Concesionaria,

S.A2017 USD Term Loan

C 25% 6/1/2025 (Bank Debt Surface

Investments) Spain Transport 256,553 256,553 256,553 - 0.28 0.58

Hotel Puerta America PIK

TIL7.25% 1/9/27 EUR Lodging &

(Bank Debt Investments) Spain Casinos 3901,657  4,293218 4,215,146 - - 19.05

Hotel Puerta America PIK

Add on 7.25% 1/9/27 EUR Lodging &

(Bank Debt Investments) Spain Casinos 1,540,070 1,675,349 1,663,811 - - 7.52

Hotel Puerta America T/L

Profit Participation (EUR

PK) Lodging &

(Bank Debt Investments) Spain Casinos 1,000,003 1,281,898 1,177,582 - - 532

US Treasury N/B 1.500%

02/15/30 United

(US Treasury Bills) States United States 6,975,000 7,326,847 6,085,143 3.20 4.30 -
63,824,032 55,007,709 58.49 63.54 94.24

1 This is the Fair Value expressed as a percentage of total Ordinary Share NAV, Extended Life Share NAV, New Global Share NAV and Company NAV.

The accompanying notes below are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Condensed Schedule of Investments (by geography)

EXTENDED NEW
ORDINARY LIFE GLOBAL
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024 SHARES SHARES SHARES
(EXPRESSED IN US DOLLARS) COsT FAIR VALUE ! (! (!
Geographic diversity of Portfolios
Portfolio of Distressed Investments
Luxembourg 1,893,980 7,700,216 18.51 1545 -
Netherlands 15,194,275 9,691,940 - 11.97 3.80
Spain 35,653,180 12,092,312 - 7.21 50.53
United States - 1,137,700 - 2.26 204
Short term Investments (US Treasury
Bills)
United States 7,270,075 6,055,717 3H29 544 -
60,011,510 36,677,885 53.80 42.33 95.37

1 This is the Fair Vialue expressed as a percentage of fotal Ordinary Share NAV, Extended Life Share NAV, New Global Share NAV and Company NAV.

The accompanying notes below are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Condensed Schedule of Investments (by geography) (continued)
EX

TENDED NEW
ORDINARY LIFE GLOBAL
AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 SHARES SHARES SHARES

(EXPRESSED N US DOLLARS) COST  FAIRVALUE %) (%) (%!

3.67

0.82

0.65

0.45

0.37

0.32

5.26

208

1.47

7.59
68.63

TOTAL
COMPANY

(%)1

1213
15.26
19.06

1.79

954
51.17

TOTAL
COMPANY

(%)1



Geographic diversity of Portfolios

Portfolio of Distressed Investments

Luxembourg 1,893,980 10,786,873 2428 17.04 - 1346
Netherlands 14,595,720 10,879,528 - 10.57 27.31 13.57
Spain 33,845,809 16,246,165 - 10.09 52.62 2021
United States 32,622,153 16,885,882 234 814 17.00 21.06
Short term Investments (US Treasury
Bills)
United States 7,326,847 6,085,142 R0 430 - 7.59
90,284,529 60,883,590 59.82 70.14 96.99 75.95
1 This is the Fair Value expressed as a percentage of total Ordinary Share NAV, Extended Life Share NAV, New Global Share NAV and Company NAV.
The accompanying notes below are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | Consolidated Condensed Schedule of Investments
Consolidated Condensed Schedule of Investments (by sector)
ORDINARY EXTENDEDLIFE =~ NEW GLOBAL TOTAL
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024 SHARES SHARES SHARES COMPANY
(EXPRESSED IN US DOLLARS) COST  FAIRVALUE %! %! %! (%!
Industry diversity of Portfolios
Portfolio of Distressed Investments
Commercial Mortgage 15,194,275 9,691,940 - 11.97 380 15.27
Containers & Packaging 1,893,980 7,700,217 18,51 15.45 - 1213
Lodging & Casinos 10,690,426 6,927,131 - - 4339 10.91
Oil & Gas - 1,137,700 - 22 204 1.79
Surface Transport 24,962,754 5,165,180 - 721 16.14 813
Short term Investments
US Treasury Bills 7,270,075 6,055,717 %29 5.44 - 9.54
60,011,510 36,677,885 53.80 42.33 95.37 51.17
1 This is the Fair Value expressed as a percentage of total Ordinary Share NAV, Extended Life Share NAV, New Global Share NAV and Company NAV.
The accompanying notes below are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
ORDINARY EXTENDEDLIFE =~ NEW GLOBAL TOTAL
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 SHARES SHARES SHARES ~ COMPANY
(EXPRESSED IN US DOLLARS) COST  FAIR VALUE (%)" (%)" (%)" (%!
Industry diversity of Portfolios
Portfolio of Distressed Investments
Auto Components 3,705,793 2,151,740 0.1 33% 276 268
Commercial Mortgage 14,595,720 10,879,528 - 10.57 21.31 13.57
Containers & Packaging 1,893,980 10,786,873 2428 17.04 - 1346
Financial Intermediaries 19,741,371 3,724,142 23 7.5 - 465
Lodging & Casinos 10,263,797 7,096,540 - - 31.89 8.80
Oil & Gas 9,174,989 11,010,000 - 17.23 14.24 13.74
Surface Transport 23,582,032 9,189,625 - 10.09 20.73 11.46
Short term Investments
US Treasury Bills 7,326,847 6,085,142 B0 430 - 7.59
90,284,529 60,883,590 59.82 70.14 96.99 75.95

1ThisislheFairVaIueexpressedasaperoeniageoftmal Ordinary Share NAV, Extended Life Share NAV, New Global Share NAV and Company NAV.

The accompanying notes on pages 71 to 88 are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTE 1 - ORGANISATION AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

NB Distressed Debt Investment Fund Limited (the "Company”) is a closed-ended investment company registered and incorporated in Guernsey



under the provisions of the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 (as amended) (the "Companies Law") with registraion number 51774. The
Company's shares are traded on the Specialist Fund Segment ("SFS") of the London Stock Exchange ("LSE"). All share classes are in the
harvest period.

The Company's objecive is to provide investors with atractive risk-adjusted returns through long-biased, opportunisiic stressed, distressed and
special situation credit-related investments while seeking to limit downside risk by, amongst other things, focusing on senior and senior secured
debt with both collateral and structural protection.

The Company's share capital is denominated in US Dollars for Ordinary Shares and Extended Life Shares and Pounds Sterling for New Global
Shares.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of Preparation

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements ("Financial Statements”) give a frue and fair view of the assets, liabilifies, financial position
and return and have been prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("US GAAP") and Companies Law and are
expressed in US Dollars. All adjustments considered necessary for the fair presentation of the financial statements, for the year presented, have
been included.

The Company is regarded as an Investment Company and follows the accounting and reporting guidance in Financial Accounting Standards
Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") and Financial Services - Investment Conpanies Topic 946: Amendments fo the
Scope, Measurement, and Disclosure Requirements (Topic 946). Accordingly, the Company reflects ifs investments on the Consolidated
Statement of Assefs and Liabilities at their estimated fair values, with unrealised gains and losses resuling from changes in fair value reflected in net
change in unrealised gain/(loss) on investments, credit default swap, fofal refurn swap and forward currency fransactons in the Consolidated
Statement of Operations.

The Board recognises that the Portlios (the Ordinary Share Class; the Extended Life Share Class; and the New Global Share Class) are now
in their harvest periods. The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to confinue in operational
existence for the twelve months from the date these accounts are signed and the foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to prepare the Financial
Statements on a going concern basis, as liquidation is notimminent

(b) Principles of Consolidation

The Financial Statements include the results of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, whose accounting policies are consistent with
those of the Conmpany. The Financial Statements include full consolidation of any owned subsidiaries, except where the eflect on the Company's
financial position and results of operations are immaterial. Transactions between the Company and the subsidiaries have been eliminated on
consolidation.

Wholly-owned subsidiaries, London Lux Masterco 1 S.a.r.l., London Lux Debtco 1 S.a.r.I. and London Lux Propco 1 S.a.r.l. are incorporated in
Luxembourg.

(c) Use of Estimates

The preparation of these Financial Statements in conformity with US GAAP requires that the Directors make estimates and assunptions (as
mentioned in detail in note 2 () below) that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported
amounts of income and expenses during the reporting year.

Actual results could differ significanty from these esfimates.

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

The Company holds cash and cash equivalents in US Dollar and non-US Dollar denominated currencies with original maturities of less than 90
days that are both readily convertble to known amounts of cash. As at 31 December 2024, the Company has cash balances in various
currencies equating to 25,373,459 (Cost 25,392,830) (31 December 2023: 16,569,578 (Cost 16,566,075) including cash and cash equivalents
014,403,459 (31 December 2023: 4,809,578) as well as resfricted cash of 10,970,000 (31 December 2023: 11,760,000). Restricted cash of
10,970,000 (31 December 2023: 10,970,000) is collateral for the tofal refurn swap posions and restricted cash of Nil (31 December 2023:
790,000 is collateral for forward currency confracs.

(e) Foreign Currency Translation
Assets and liabiliies denominated in foreign currency are franslated into US Dollars at the currency exchange rates on the date of valuation. On
inifial recognition, foreign currency sales and purchases fransactions are recorded and translated at the spot exchange rate at the transaction date

and for all other fransactions the averaae rate is annlied Non-mnetarv assets and liahiliies are translated at the historic exchanae rate
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The Company does not separate the changes relafing to currency exchange rates from those relating to changes in fair value of the investments.
These fluctuations are included in the net realised gain(loss) and net change in unrealised gain/(loss) on investments, credit default swap, otal
return swap and forward currency fransactions in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

(f) Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The fair value of the Company's assets and liabilites that qualify as financial instruments under FASB ASC 825, Financial Instruments,
approximate the carrying amounts presented in the Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities.

Fair value prices are estimates made at a discrete point in fime, based on relevant market data, information about the financial instruments, and
other factors.

The Company follows guidance in ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement ("ASC 820"), where fair value is defined as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Fair value is determined using available market information and appropriate valuaton methodologies. Estimates of fair value of financial
instruments without quoted market prices are subjective in nature and involve various assumptions and estimates tat are matiers of judgement
Accordingly, fair values are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that will be ulimately realised on disposal of financial instuments. The use of
difierent market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a material effect on estimated fair value amounts.

The following estimates and assunptions were used as at 31 December 2024 and 31 Decenber 2023 to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instruments:

e Cash and cash equivalents - The carrying value reasonably approximates fair value due to the short-erm nature of these instruments.

e Quoted investments are valued according to their bid price at the close of the relevant reporting date. Investments in private securities are
priced at the bid price using a pricing service for private loans. If a price cannot be ascertained from the above sources, the Company will
seek bid prices fromthird party broker/dealer quotes for the investments.

e In cases where no third-party price is available, or where the Investment Manager determines that the provided price is not an accurate
representafion of the fair value of the investment (e.g. level 3 investments included overleaf), the Investment Manager determines the
valuation based on ifs fair valuation policy. Further information on valuations is provided in Note 2 (g), "Investment fransactions, investment
income/expenses and valuation", on page 76.

e Forward currency contracts are revalued using the forward exchange rate prevailing at the Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabiliies
date.

o Tofal Return Swaps are priced using mark to market prices provided by a tird-party broker.

o CreditReturn Swaps are priced using a pricing service provided by Markit Partners.

Fair value measurements are determined within a framework that establishes a three-tier hierarchy which maximises the use of observable market
data and minimises the use of unobservable inputs to establish a classification of fair value measurements for disclosure purposes.

Inputs refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk, such as
the risk inherent in a particular valuation technique used to measure fair value using a pricing model and/or the risk inherent in the inputs for the
valuation technique. Inputs may be observable or unobservable.

Observable inputs reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from sources
independent of the Company. Unobservable inputs reflect the Company's own assunplions about the assumptions market participants would use
in pricing the asset or liability based on the information available. The inputs or methodology used for valuing assefs or liabilifes may not be an
indication of the risks associated with investing in those assets or liabiliies.

ASC 820 classifies the inputs used to measure these fair values info the following hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted prices are available in active markefs for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2: Pricing inputs are other than quoted prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirecty observable as of the reporting date,
and fair value is determined through the use of models or other valuaion methodologies.



Level 3: Pricing inputs are unobservable for the investment and include situations where there is litle, if any, market acivity for the investment
The inputs used in the determination of the fair value require significant management judgement or estimation.

In all cases, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement in its entirety falls has been determined based on the
lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement The Company's assessment of the significance of a parficular input to the fair

value measurementin its entirety requires judgement and considers factors specific to each investment

The following is a summary of the levels within the fair value hierarchy in which the Company invests:

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024

(EXPRESSED IN US DOLLARS) LEVEL 1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3 TOTAL
Bank Debt Investments - - 21,784,252 21,784,252
Private Equity - - 8,837,916 8,837,916
US Treasury Bills 6,055,717 - - 6,095,717
Investments at fair value 6,055,717 - 30,622,168 36,677,885
Credit Default Swap - (19,525) - (19,525)
Total Refum Swap - - (126,689) (126,689)
Forward Currency Contracts - Assets - 2,459,931 - 2,459,931
Forward Currency Contracts - Liabilities - (11,319) - (11,319)
Total investments that are accounted for at fair value 6,055,717 2,429,087 30,495,479 38,980,283

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023

(EXPRESSED IN US DOLLARS) LEVEL 1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3 TOTAL
Bank Debt Investments - - 27,125,693 27,125,693
Private Equity - - 23,948,613 23,948,613
Private Note - - 3,724,142 3,724,142
US Treasury Bills 6,085,142 - - 6,085,142
Investments at fair value 6,085,142 - 54,798,448 60,883,590
Credit Default Swap - (21,309 - (21,309
Total Retum Swap - - 3,648,201 3,648,201
Forward Currency Contracts - Assefs - 18,235 - 18,235
Forward Currency Contracts - Liabilities - (1,545,570) - (1,545,570)
Total investments that are accounted for at fair value 6,085,142 (1,548,644) 58,446,649 62,983,147

The following table summarises the significant unobservable inputs the Company used to value ifs investments categorised within Level 3 as at
31 December 2024. The fable is not intended to be all-inclusive but instead captures the significant unobservable inputs relevant to our
determination of fair values.

PRIMARY VALUATION SIGNIFICANT
TYPE SECTOR FAIR VALUE () TECHNIQUE ~ UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS RANGE INPUT
Bank Debt . )
ves Commercial Mortgage 9,691,939 Market Comparatives Discount Rate 10%
Bank Debt ’ . ) 0
nves Lodging & Casinos 6,927,132 Mearket Comparatives Discount Rate 15%
Bank Debt ) i
ves Surface Transport 5,165,180 Market Information Unadjusted Broker Quote NA
Private Equity Containers & Packaging 7,700,217 Mearket Comparatives EBITDA Multiple 10.75X
Private Equity Ol & Gas 1,137,700 Mearket Information Unadjusted Broker Quote NA
Total Refum Swap Surface Transport (126,689) Mearket Information Unadjusted Broker Quote NA
Total 30,495,479

The following table summarises the significant unobservable inputs the Company used to value its investments categorised within Level 3 as at 31
December 2023. The table is notintended to be all-inclusive but instead captures the significant unobservable inputs relevant to our determination
of fair values.

PRIMARY VALUATION SIGNIFICANT

TYPE SECTOR FAIR VALUE () TECHNIQUE ~ UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS RANGE INPUT
Bank Debt

Investments Commercial Morigage 10,879,528 Market Comparatives Discount Rate 10%
Bank Debt

Investments Lodging & Casinos 7,056,540 Mearket Comparatives Discount Rate 15%
Bank Debt

Investments Surface Transport 9,189,625 Market Information Unadjusted Broker Quote NA
Private Eouity Auto Components 2,151,740 Market Information EBITDA Multiple 4.5X
Private Eouity Containers & Packaging 10,786,873 Market Comperafives EBITDA Multiple 10.75X
Private Eouity Oil and Ges 11,010,000 Market Information Unadjusted Broker Quote NA
Private Note Financial Intermediaries 3724142 Market Information Unadjusted Broker Quote NA

Total Retum Swap Surface Transport 3,648,201 Mearket Information Unadjusted Broker Quote N/A



Total 58,446,649
Changes in any of the above inputs may positively or adversely impact the fair value of the relevantinvestments.

Level 3 assets are valued using single bid-side broker quotes or by good faith methods of the Investment Manager. For single broker quotes the
Investment Manager uses unobservable inputs to assess the reasonableness of the broker quote. For good faith valuations, the Investment
Manager directly uses unobservable inputs to produce valuations. The significant unobservable inputs used in Level 3 assefs as at 31 December
2024 and 31 December 2023 are outiined in the tables above.

These inputs vary by asset class. For exanple, real estate asset valuations may utlise discounted cash flow models using an appropriate discount
rate. Other assets may be valued based on analysis of the liquidation of the underlying assets. In general, increases/(decreases) to per unit
valuation inputs will resultin increases/(decreases) to investment value.

Similarly, increases/(decreases) of asset realisation inputs (liquidation estmate, letier of intent, efc.) will also result in increases/(decreases) in
value. In situations where discounted cash flow models are used, increasing/(decreasing) discount rates or increasing/(decreasing) weighted

average life, in isolaion, will generally resultin (decreased)/increased valuations.

The following is a reconciliaion of opening and closing balances of assets and liabiliies measured at fair value on a recurring basis using Level 3

inputs:
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEVBER 2024
(EXPRESSED IN US DOLLARS)
BANK DEBT PRVATE PRVATE

INVESTVENTS EQUITY TRADE CLAM NOTE TOTAL
Balance, 31 December 2023 27,125,693 23,948,613 3,648,201 3,724,142 58,446,649
Purchases (includes purchases-in-kind) 2,405,907 - - - 2,405,907
Sdles and distributions - (11,090,945) - (5,480,178) (16,571,123
Redlised loss on sale of investments - (1,789,836) - (14,261,195) (16,051,031)
Unreglised (loss)/gain on investments (7,747,348) (2,229,916) (3,774,8%0) 16,017,231 2,265,077
Balance, 31 December 2024 21,784,252 8,837,916 (126,689) - 30,495,479
Change in unrealised (loss)/gain on investments
included in Audited Consolidated Statement of
Operation for Level 3 investments held as at 31
December 2024 (7,747,348) (2,229,916) (3,774,890) 16,017,231 2,265,077

The Company's policy is to recognise transfers info and out of Level 3 as of the actual date of the event or change in circumstances that caused
the fransfer. During the year the Company had no transfers out of Level 3 info Level 2 of fair value amounting to Nil. The Company had no
transfers across fair value amounting levels during the year.

The following is a reconciliaion of opening and closing balances of assets and liabiliies measured at fair value on a recurring basis using Level 3
inputs:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEVBER 2023

(EXPRESSED IN US DOLLARS)
BANK DEBT PRVATE PRVATE

INVESTVENTS EQUTY TRADE CLAM NOTE TOTAL
Balance, 31 December 2022 27,358,457 13,492,057 1,558,420 8,362,230 50,771,164
Purchases (includes purchases-inkind) 2,303,563 - - - 2,303,563
Sales and distribuions (2,508,112 - - (4,511,654) (7,019,766)
Realised gain on sale of investments (70,506) - - 379,178 3723672
Unrealised gain/(loss) on investments 42,291 (553,444) 2,089,781 (3,920,612 (2,341,984)
Transfers from Level 2into Level 3 - 11,010,000 - - 11,010,000
Balance, 31 December 2023 27,125,693 23,948,613 3,648,201 3,724,142 58,446,649
Change in unrealised gain/(loss) on investments
included in Audited Consolidated Statement of
Operation for Level 3 investments held as at 31
December 2023 (98,561) (553,444) 2,089,781 (3,920,612) (2,482,836)

The Company's policy is to recognise transfers info and out of Level 3 as of the actual date of the event or change in circumstances that caused
the transfer. During the year the Company had no transfers out of Level 3 infto Level 2 of fair value amounting to Nil. The Company had one
transfer out of Level 2 into Level 3 of fair value amounting to 11,010,000 as only a single broker quote was observable.

(g) Investment transactions, investment income/expenses and valuation

Investment ransactions are accounted for on a frade-date basis. Upon sale or maturity, the diffierence between the consideration received and the
cost of the investment is recognised as a realised gain or loss under Net realised gain/(loss) on investments, credit default swap, total return swap
and forward currency transactions in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. The cost s determined based on the specific identification method.
Al ransactions relating to the restruciuring of current investments are recorded at the date of such restructuring. The difference between the fair
value of the new consideration received and the cost of the original investment is recognised as a realised gain or loss. Unrealised gains and



losses on an investment are the difierence between the costif purchased during the year or fair value at the previous year end and the fair value
atthe current year end. Unrealised gains and losses are included under Net change in unrealised (loss)/gain on investments, credit default swap,
warrants and forward currency ransactions in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

For the year ended 31 Decerrber 2024, 56,771 (31 Decerrber 2023: 91,550) was recorded o reflect accrefion of discount on loans and bonds
during the year and is included as Interest Income in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Interest earned on debt instruments is accounted for, net of applicable withholding taxes and itis recognised as income over the terms of the loans
and bonds. Discounts received or premiums paid in connection with the acquisition of loans and bonds are amorfised into interest income using the
effective daily interest method over the contractual life of the related loan and bond. If a loan is repaid prior to maturity, the recognition of the fees
and costs is accelerated as appropriate. The Company raises a provision when the collection of interest is deemed doubtful. Dividend income is
recognised on the ex-dividend date net of withholding tax.

Payment-in-kind ("PIK") interest is computed at the contractual rate specified in the loan agreement for any portion of the interest which may be
added to the principal balance of a loan rather than paid in cash by the obligator on the scheduled interest payment date. PIK interest is
periodically added to the principal balance of the loan and recorded as interest income. The Investment Manager places a receivable on non-
accrual status when the collection of principal or interest is deemed doubtful. The amount of interest income recorded, plus iniial costs of underlying
PIK interest is reviewed periodically to ensure that these do not exceed fair value of those assets.

The Company carries investments on its Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilifes at fair value in accordance with US GAAP, with changes
in fair value recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Operations in each reporting period. Fair value is defined as the price that would be
received on the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability (i.e. the "exit price") in an orderly transaction between market partcipants at the
measurement date.

Quoted investments are valued according to their bid price at the close of the relevant reporting date. Investments in private securiies are priced
atthe bid price using a pricing service for private loans.

If a price cannot be ascertained from the above sources the Company will seek bid prices from third party broker/dealer quotes for the
investments. The Investment Manager believes that bid price is the best estimate of fair value and is in line with the valuation policy adopted by the
Conpany.

In cases where no third party price is available, or where the Invesiment Manager determines that the provided price is not an accurate
representation of the fair value of the investment, the Administrator will value such investments with the input of the Investment Manager who will
determine the valuation based on its fair valuation policy. As part of the investment fair valuation policy, the Investment Manager prepares a fair
valuation memorandum for each such investment presenting the methodology and assurmptions used to derive the price. This analysis is
presented o the Investment Manager's Valuation Commitiee for approval.

The following criteria are considered when applicable:

o The valuation of other securities by the same issuer for which market quotations are available;

o The reasons for absence of market quotations;

o The soundness of the security, its interest yield, the date of maturity, the credit standing of the issue and the current general interest rates;
o Any recentsales prices and/or bid and ask quotaions for the security;

o The value of similar securities of issuers in the same or similar indusfries for which market quotations are available;

o The economic outiook of the industry;

o Theissuer's position in the industry;

e  The financial statements of the issuer; and

o The nature and duration of any resfriction on disposition of the security.

(h) Derivative Contracts

The Company may, from fime o time, hold derivative financial instruments for the purposes of managing foreign currency exposure and to
provide a measure of protection against defaults of corporate or sovereign issuers. These derivatives are measured at fair value in conformity
with US GAAP with changes in fair value recognised under Realised and unrealised (loss)/gain from investments and foreign exchange in the
Consolidated Statement of Operations in each reporting period.

As part of the Company's investment strategy, the Company enters into over-the-counter ("OTC") derivative contracts which may include forward
currency contracts, credit default swaps and total return swaps.

Forward currency confracts are valued at the prevailing forward exchange rate of the underlying currencies on the reporting date and the value



recorded in the financial statements represents net unrealised gain and loss on forwards as at 31 Decenrber. Forward contracts are generally
categorised in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The credit default swap has been entered into on the OTC market The fair value of the credit default swap contract is derived using a pricing
service provided by Markit Partners. Markit Partners use a pricing model that is widely accepted by markefplace participants. Their pricing model
takes into account muliple inputs including specific contract terms, interest rate yield curves, interest rates, credit curves, recovery rates, and
current credit spreads obtained from swap counterparties and other market participants. Many inputs into the model do not require material
subjectivity as they are observable in the marketplace or set per the contract Other than the contract terms, valuation is mainly determined by the
difference between the confract spread and the current market spread. The contract spread (or rate) is generally fixed and the market spread is
determined by the credit risk of the underlying debt or reference entty. If the underlying debtis liquid and the OTC market for the current spread is
active, credit default swaps are categorised in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. If the underlying debt is iliquid and the OTC market for the
current spread is not active, credit default swaps are categorised in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

The total return swap is valued using a mark to market prices provided by a third-party broker.

(i) Taxation
The Company is not subject to income taxes in Guernsey; however, it may be subject to taxes imposed by other countries on income it derives
frominvestments.

Such taxes are reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. In accordance with US GAAP, management is required to determine
whether a fax position of the Company is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the applicable taxing authority, including
resolution of any related appeals or lifgation processes, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefit to be recognised is measured
as te largest amount of beneft that is greater than fify percent likely of being realised upon ulimate seflement De-recognition of a tax benefit
previously recognised could result in the Conpany recording a tax liability that would reduce net assets. US GAAP also provides guidance on
thresholds, measurement, de-recognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transifon tat is
intended to provide better financial statement comparability among different entities.

There were no uncertain tax positions as at 31 December 2024 or 31 Decerrber 2023. The Conrpany files ifs tax returns as prescribed by the
tax laws of the jurisdicions in which it operates. In the normal course of business, the Company is subject to examination by federal and certain
state, local, and other foreign tax regulators. State, local and foreign tax returns, if applicable, are generally subject to audit according to varying
limitations dependent upon the jurisdiction. As of 31 December 2024, the Company's U.S. federal income tax refurns are subject to examination
under the three-year statute of limitations.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company recorded current income tax expense Nil (31 December 2023 income tax expense:
Nil). Deferred taxes are recorded t reflect the tax consequences of future years' difierences between the tax basis of assets and their financial
reporting basis. The deferred tax benefit recorded for the year ended 31 December 2024 was Nil (31 December 2023 deferred tax benefit Nil).
The net tofal income tax benefittexpense from realised/unrealised gains/(losses) on investments for the year ended 31 December 2024 was Nil
(31 December 2023 income tax expense: Nil).

(i) Operating Expenses

Operating expenses are recognised on an accruals basis. Operafing expenses include amounts directly or indirectly incurred by the Company as
part of its operations. Each share class will bear its respeciive pro-rata share based on its respective NetAsset Value ('NAV') of the ongoing costs
and expenses of the Company. Each share class will also bear all costs and expenses of the Company determined by the Directors o be
atributable solely fo it Any costs incurred by a share buyback are charged fo that share class.

(k) Payables/Receivables on Investments Purchased/Sold
At 31 December 2024, Nil (31 December 2023: Nil) was receivable on investments purchased/sold represents amounts due for investments
purchased/sold that have been contracted for but not setied on the Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities.

NOTE 3 - DERIVATIVES

In the normal course of business, the Company uses derivative contracts in connection with its proprietary trading acfvities. Investments in
derivative contracts are subject to additional risks that can result in a loss of all or part of the derivative investment The Company's derivative
acliviies and exposure to derivative contracts are dlassified by the following primary underlying risks: foreign currency exchange rate, credit and
equity price. In additon to its primary underlying risks, the Company is also subject to additional counterparty risk due to inability ofits counterparties
to meet the terms of their contracts.

Forward Currency Contracts
The Company enters info forwards for the purposes of managing foreign currency exposure.



Credit Default Swap
The Company uses credit default swap agreements on corporate or sovereign issues to provide a measure of protection against defaults of the
issuers (i.e., to reduce risk where a Company owns or has exposure to the referenced obligation) from fime to ime.

There was one credit default swap position (Brazilian Government) held as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: one).

Total Return Swap

The Company entered ino two fully funded total refurn swaps on 2 May 2011 and 18 April 2012. These swaps matured on 25 February 2020
and rolled over into a new swap agreement New ISDA regulations enacted in 2019 require booking the tofal return swaps with cash collateral
maintained vs fully funded swaps.

The new swap rolls on an annual basis. The swap was booked on 02 March 2023 and mafured on 01 February 2024. A realised event
occurred on the value of the swap as at 01 February 2024 of 1,343,355. The next maturity will occur on 01 February 2025. The value of the
swap, exclusive of related cash collateral, as at 31 Decenrber 2024 is 1,381,915 (31 December 2023: 3,648,201) representing a change in
market value of 38,560 in the period since the 01 February 2023 maturity.

As at 31 December 2024 the net value of the swap and related cash collateral was 12,351,915 (31 December 2023: 14,618,201) (comprised of
restricted cash collateral of 10,970,000 (31 December 2023: 10,970,000) and tofal return swap asset of 1,381,915 (31 December 2023: swap
asset 0f 3,648,201), as reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Assefs and Liabiliies. The underlying asset of the swaps is denominated in
Brazilian Real and the foreign exchange exposure is hedged to offset any change in value in underlying asset due to the FX movements.

Derivative activity
For the year ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023 the volume of the Company's derivative aciiviies based on their notional amounts
and number of contracts, categorised by primary underlying risk, are as follows:

31 DECEMBER 2024 LONG EXPOSURE | SHORT EXPOSURE
NOTIONAL
PRIMARY UNDERLYINGRISK AMOUNTS NUMBER OF CONTRACTS NOTIONAL AMOUNTS  NUMBER OF CONTRACTS
Foreign exchange risk |
Foward Curency Contracts 129,525,308 6 | 104,814,523 76
Credit risk |
Crecit Defaut Swap 9,971,000 1 - -
Toid Retum Swap - - | 10,980,348 2
31 DECEMBER 2023 LONG EXPOSURE | SHORT EXPOSURE
NOTIONAL
PRIMARY UNDERLYINGRISK AMOUNTS NUMBER OF CONTRACTS NOTIONAL AMOUNTS  NUMBER OF CONTRACTS
Foreign exchange risk |
Foward Curency Contracis 127,841,170 61 | 125,731,102 77
Credit risk |
Credt Defauit Swap 9,971,000 1] - -
Toidl Retum Swap - - | 10,960,348 2

The following tables show, as at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the fair value amounts of derivative contracts included in the
Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabiliies, categorised by primary underlying risk. Balances are presented on a gross basis prior o
application of the impact of counterparty and collateral neting. Total derivative assefs and liabilies are adjusted on an aggregate basis to take info
account the effects of master neting arrangements and, where applicable, have been adjusted by the application of cash collateral receivables
and payables with its counterparties. The fables also identify, as at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the realised and unrealised gain
and loss amounts included in the Consolidated Statement of Operations, categorised by primary underlying risk:

DERIVATIVE DERIVATIVE REALISED GAIN NET CHANGEIN
31 DECEVBER 2024 ASSETS LIABILITIES (LOSS)  UNREALISED GAIN (LOSS)
PRIMARY UNDERLYING RISK () () () ()
Foreign currency exchange rate
Forward Currency Confracts 2450931 (11,319 (2,72 3,975,946
Credit
Purchased protection
Credit Default Swap - (19,525) (48,132 43882
Totd Refum Swap - (126,689) - (3,774,839
DERIVATIVE DERIVATIVE REALISED GAIN NET CHANGEIN
31 DECEVBER 2023 ASSETS LIABILITIES (LOSS)  UNREALISED GAIN (LOSS)

PRIMARY UNDERLYING RISK () () (0 ()



Foreign currency exchange rate

Foward Curency Conracts 18235 (1,545,570) (1,975,089) (269.987)
Credit
Purchased protecion
Credit Defauit Swap - (21,309 (84550) 323
Toial Retum Swap 3648201 - - 2,078,684

Offsetting assets and liabilities

Amounts due from and to brokers are presented on a net basis, by counterparty, to the extent the Company has the legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and intends to setfle on a net basis.

The Company presents on a net basis the fair value amounts recognised for OTC derivatives executed with the same counterparty under the

same master neffing agreement

The Company is required o disclose the impact of offseting assets and liabilities presented in the Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabiliies to
enable users of the Financial Statements to evaluate the eflect or potential effect of neting arrangements on its financial position for recognised

assets and liabiliies.

These recognised assets and liabiliies include financial instruments and derivative contracts that are either subject o an enforceable master neting
arrangement or similar agreement or meet the following right of set off criteria:

the Company intends o set off; and

each of the two parties owes the other determinable amounts;

o the Company's right of set offis enforceable at law.

the Company has the right to set off the amounts owed with the amounts owed by the other party;

The Company is subject o enforceable master neting agreements with its counterparties of credit default swap, the total return swaps and foreign
currency exchange contracts. These agreements govern the terms of certain transactions and reduce the counterparty risk associated with
relevant transactions by specifying offseting mechanisms and collateral posfing arrangements at pre- arranged exposure levels.

Derivative activity

The following tables, as at 31 December 2024, show the gross and net derivatives assets and liabilites by contract type and amount for those
derivatives contracts for which netiing is permissible.

31 DECEVBER 2024
(EXPRESSED IN US DOLLARS)
AMOUNTS NOT OFFSET IN
THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
GROSS AMOUNTS NET AMOUNTS OF
GROSS OFFSET IN THE RECOGNISED ASSETS
AMOUNTS CONSOLIDATED PRESENTED IN THE FINANCIAL
OF STATEVENTS OF CONSOLIDATED INSTRUMENTS  FINANCIAL
RECOGNISED ASSETS AND STATEMENT OF ASSETS (PoLICY COLLATERAL NET
DESCRIPTION ASSETS LIABILITIES AND LIABILITIES ELECTION)  RECAVED' AMOUNT
Forward
curency
contracts 2,459,931 - 2,459,931 (11,319 - 248612
Total 2,459,931 - 2,459,931 (11,319 2,448,612
AMOUNTS NOT OFFSET IN
THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
GROSS AMOUNTS NET AMOUNTS OF
GROSS OFFSET IN THE RECOGNISED ASSETS
AMOUNTS CONSOLIDATED PRESENTED IN THE FINANCIAL
OF STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED INSTRUMENTS  FINANCIAL
RECOGNISED ASSETS AND STATEMENT OF ASSETS (PoLICY COLLATERAL NET
DESCRIPTION  LIABILITIES LIABILITIES AND LIABILITIES ELECTION)  PLEDGED! AMOUNT
Forward
curency
conracts (11,319 - (11,319 11,319 - -
Toidl reum
swaps (126,689) - (126,689) - 10843311 10,716,62
Crexit default
swep (19,520) - (19,529) - (19,520)




Tota (157,53)

(157,533)

11,319 10,843,311

1 The amount neted offis a portion of the total collateral as per the Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities.

10,697,097

The following table, as at 31 December 2023, show the gross and net derivatives assefs and liabilities by contract type and amount for those
derivatives confracts for which netting is permissible.

31 DECEMBER 2023
(EXPRESSED IN US DOLLARS)

AVMOUNTS NOT OFFSET IN

THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
GROSS AMOUNTS
GROSS OFFSET IN THE NET AMOUNTS OF
AMOUNTS CONSOLIDATED RECOGNISED ASSETS FINANCIAL
OF STATEMENTS OF PRESENTEDINTHE INSTRUMENTS  FINANCIAL
RECOGNISED ASSETSAND  CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT (PoLICY COLLATERAL NET
DESCRIPTION ASSETS LIABILITIES  OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ELECTION)  RECAVED! AMOUNT
Forward
curency
contracts 182% - 18,23 (18,23 - -
Toid reum
swaps 3,648,201 - 3,648,201 - - 3648201
Total 3,666,436 - 3,666,436 (18,235) 3,648,201
AMOUNTS NOT OFFSET IN
THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
GROSS AMOUNTS
GROSS OFFSET IN THE NET AMOUNTS OF
AMOUNTS CONSOLIDATED RECOGNISED ASSETS FINANCIAL
OF STATEMENTS OF PRESENTEDINTHE INSTRUMENTS  FINANCIAL
RECOGNISED ASSETS AND  CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT (POLICY COLLATERAL NET
DESCRIPTION  LIABILITIES LIABILITIES  OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ELECTION)  RECHVED! AMOUNT
Forward
curency
contracts (1,545,570) - (1,545,570) 18235 790,000 (737,33%)
Credit defavit
swap 21,309) - (1,309) - - (@239
Total (1,566,879) - (1,566,879) 18,235 790,000  (758,644)

1 The amount neted ofis a portion of the total collateral as per the Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities.
NOTE 4 - RISK FACTORS

The Company's investments are subject fo various risk factors including market and credit risk, interest rate and foreign exchange risk, and the
risks associated with investing in private securities. Investments in private securiies and parterships are illiquid, and there can be no assurances
that the Company will be able to realise the value of such investments in a imely manner. Additonally, the Company's investments may be highly
concentrated in certain industries. Non-US dollar denominated investments may result in foreign exchange losses caused by devaluations and
exchange rate fluctuations. In additon, consequences of poliical, social, economic, diplomatic changes or public health condiion may have
disruptive effects on market prices or fair valuations of foreign investments.

Market Risk

Market risk is the potental for changes in the value of investments. Categories of market risk include, but are not limited o, interest rates. Interest
rate risks primarily result from exposures to changes in the level, slope and curvature of the yield curve, te volafiity of interest rates and credit
spreads. Defails of the Company's investment Portlio as at 31 December 2024 and 31 Decenber 2023 are disclosed in the Consolidated
Condensed Schedule of Investments. Each separate investment exceeding 5% of net assefs is disclosed separately.

Credit Risk

The Company may invest in a range of corporate and other bonds and other credit sensitive securities. Until such investments are sold or are
paid in full at maturity, the Company is exposed to credit risk relafing to whether the issuer will meet its obligations when the securities fall due.
Distressed debt securities by nature are securities in companies which are in default or are heading into default and will expose the Company o a
higher than normal amount of credit risk.
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particular geographic region. As a result, the Company's performance may be closely aligned with the market, currency or economic, political or
regulatory conditions and developments in those countries or that region, and could be more volatie than the performance of more geographically
diversified investments. Refer o the Consolidated Condensed Schedules of Investments on pages 65 to 70 for concentration of credit risk.

The Company maintains positions in a variety of securities, derivative financial instruments and cash and cash equivalents in accordance with its
investment strategy and guidelines. The Company's trading activiies expose the Company to counterparty credit risk from brokers, dealers and
other financial insfituions (collectively, "counterparties") with which it transacts business. "Counterparty credit risk" is the risk that a counterparty to
a frade will fail to meet an obligation that it has entered into with the Company, resulfing in a financial loss to the Company. The Company's policy
with respect to counterparty credit risk is to minimise its exposure o counterparties with perceived higher risk of default by dealing only with
counterparties that meet the credit standards set out by the Investment Manager.

All the Company's cash and investment assets other than derivative financial instruments are held by the Custodian. The Custodian segregates
the assets of the Company from the Custodian's assets and other Custodian clients. Management believes the risk is low with respect o any losses
as a result of this concentration. The Company conducts its trading activies with respect to non-derivative posiions with a number of
counterparties. Counterparty credit risk borne by these transactions is mitigated by trading with multiple counterparties.

In additon, the Company may trade in OTC derivative instruments and in derivative instruments which trade on exchanges with generally a
limited number of counterparties and as a consequence the Company is subject to counterparty credit risk related to the potental inability of
counterparties o these derivative transactions to perform their obligaions to the Company. The Company's exposure o counterparty credit risk
associated with counterparty non-performance is generally limited to the fair value (derivatve assefs and liabiliies) of OTC derivatves reported as
net assefs, net of collateral received or paid, pursuant to agreements with each counterparty. The Investment Manager atienpts to reduce the
counterparty credit risk of the Company by establishing certain credit terms in its International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) Master
Agreements (with neting terms) with counterparties, and through credit policies and monitoring procedures. Under ISDA Master Agreements in
certain circumstances (e.g. when a credit event such as a default occurs) all outstanding transactions under the agreement are terminated, the
termination value is assessed and only a single net amount is due or payable in setflement of all transactions. The Company receives and gives
collateral in the form of cash and marketable securiies and it is subject to the ISDA Master Agreement Credit Support Annex. This means that
securities received/given as collateral can be pledged or sold during the term of the ransaction. The terms also give each party the right to
terminate the related transactions on the other party's failure to post collateral. Exchange-traded derivatives generally involve less counterparty
exposure because of the margin requirements of the individual exchanges.

Generally, these confracts can be closed out at the discretion of the Investment Manager and are governed by the futures and options clearing
agreements signed with the future commission merchants ("FCMs"). FCMs have capital requirements intended to assure that they have sufiicient
capital to protect their customers in the event of any inadequacy in customer funds arising from the default of one or more customers, adverse
market condiions, or for any other reason. The creditrisk relating to derivatives is detailed further in Note 3.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meetits obligations as and when these fall due.

Liquidity risk is managed by the Investment Manager so as to ensure that the Company maintains suficient working capital in cash or near cash
formso as fo be able to meet the Company's ongoing requirements as these are budgeted for.

Other Risks

Legal, tax and regulatory changes could occur during the term of the Company that may adversely affect the Company. The regulatory
environment for alternative investment vehicles is evolving, and changes in the regulation of alternative investment vehicles may adversely affect
the value ofinvestments held by the Company or the ability of the Company to pursue its frading strategies.

The impact of these risks can have a substantial impact on the valuation and ulimately the realisation of assefs.

Market disrupions associated with current geopoliical events have had a global impact, and uncertainty exists as to their implications. Such
disruptions can potentially adversely affect the assefs, and thus the performance, of the Company. The Board continues to monitor this situation.

NOTE 5 - SHARE CAPITAL

The Company's authorised share capital consists of

10,000 Class A Shares authorised, of par value 1 each (which carry no vofing rights); and, an unlimited number of shares of no par value which
may, upon issue, be designated as Ordinary Shares, Extended Life Shares or New Global Shares and Subscription Shares (each of which carry
voting rights) or Capital Distribution Shares.

The issued share capital <_>f the Corrp_a_ny_oonsi_stsAof Qrding_ry Shares, CI@gsA__ Shargs_ and Extended Llfe Sf\_ares, all denominated _in‘_US dollars,



and New Global Shares denoninated in Pounds Sterling. Shareholders of Ordinary Shares, Extended Life Shares and New Global Shares have
the right to atiend and vote at any general meeting of the Company. Class A shareholders do not have the right to atiend and vote at a general
meeting of the Company save where there are no other shares of the Company in issue.

The Class A Shares are held by Suntera Trustees (Guernsey) Limited (formerly named Carey Trustees Limited) (the "Trustee"), pursuant to a
Purpose Trust established under Guernsey law. Under the terms of the NBDDIF Purpose Trust Deed, the Trustee holds the Class A Shares for
the purpose of exercising the right o receive notice of general meetings of the Company but the Trustee shall only have the right to attend and
vote atgeneral meetings of the Cormmpany when there are no other shares of the Company in issue.

The original investment period expired on 10 June 2013 and a proposal was made o Ordinary Shareholders to extend the investment period by
21 months to 31 March 2015. A vote was held at a class meeting of shareholders on 8 April 2013 where the mgjority of shareholders voted in

favour of the proposed extension.

Following this meeting and with the Ordinary Shareholders approval of the extension, a new dlass, the Extended Life Shares, was created and
the Extended Life Shares were issued to 72% of initial Investors who elected to convert their Ordinary Shares o Extended Life Shares. The rest
ofinvestors remain invested on the basis of the exising investment period.

The New Global Share Class was created in March 2014 and its investment period ended on 31 March 2017.

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had the following nunber of shares in issue:

Issued and fully paid up 31 DECEMBER 2024 31 DECEMBER 2023
Class A Shares
2 2
Ordinary Share Class of no par value (Nil in treasury; 2023 Nil
b P ( ¥ ) 15,382,770 15,382,770
Extended Life Share Class of no par value (Nil in freasury; 2023: Nil)
38,731,819 44,234,790
New Global Share Class of no par value (Nil in treasury; 2023: Nil)
25,123,440 27,821,698

Reconciliation of the number of shares in issue in each class (excluding Class A) as at 31 December 2024

ORDINARY EXTENDED LIFE NEW GLOBAL
SHARES SHARES SHARES TOTAL
Balance as at 31 December 2023 15,382,770 44,234,790 27,821,698 87,439,258
Shares redeemed during the year - (5,502,971) (2,698,258) (8,201,229)
Buybacks (Shares repurchased) - - - -
Bdlance as at 31 December 2024 15,382,770 38,731,819 25,123,440 79,238,029

1 Balance of issued shares used to calculate NAV

Reconciliation of the number of shares in issue in each class (excluding Class A) as at 31 December 2023

ORDINARY EXTENDED LIFE NEW GLOBAL
SHARES SHARES SHARES TOTAL
Balance as at 31 December 2022 15,382,770 60,116,016 31,023,609 106,522,395
Shares redeemed during the year - (15,881,226) (3,201,911) (19,083,137)
Buybacks (Shares repurchased) - - - -
Belance as at 31 December 2023 15,382,770 44,234,790 27,821,698 87,439,258

1 Balance ofissued shares used o calculate NAV

Distributions

Set out below are details of the capital returns by way of compulsory partial redemptions approved during the year ended 31 Decenrber 2024
and 31 December 2023.

31 DECEVBER 2024 ORDINARY SHARE CLASS EXTENDED LIFE SHARE CLASS NEW GLOBAL SHARE CLASS

DISTRBUTION NUMBERCF PERSHARE| DISTRIBUTION NUMBEROF  PERSHARE| DISTRIBUTION NUMBEROF  PERSHARE

AVOUNT SHARES  AMVIOUNT| AVIOUNT SHARES AVIOUNT AVIOUNT SHARES AVOUNT

26 November 2024 - - - 5,491,965 5,502,971 09980,  £1,493486 2,698,258 £0.5535
- - - 5,491,965 5,502,971 0.9980,  £1,493,486 2,698,258 £0.5535

31 DECEMBER 2023 ORDINARY SHARE CLASS EXTENDED LIFE SHARE CLASS NEW GLOBAL SHARE CLASS

DISTRIBUTION NUMBEROF PERSHARE| DISTRBUTION NUMBEROF  PERSHARE| DISTRBUTION NUMBEROF  PERSHARE
AMOUNT SHARES  AMOUNT AMOUNT SHARES AMOUNT AVIOUNT SHARES AVOUNT

02 May 2023 - - - 819711 8487514 09602 2697863 3,201,911 0.842%6
29 June 2023 - - - 336290  3753,0% 0.8934 - - -
11 September 2023 - - - 37549712 3,640,656 1.0314 - - -

- - 15,257,663 15,881,226 2,697,863 3,201,911



Setoutbelow are details of the distributions by way of dividend approved during the year ended 31 Decerrber 2024 and 31 December 2023.

ORDINARY SHARE CLASS EXTENDED LIFE SHARE CLASS NEW GLOBAL SHARE CLASS
PER NUMBER PER PER
DISTRIBUTION NUMBER  SHARE| DISTRIBUTION OF  SHARE| DISTRIBUTION NUMBER OF SHARE
DATE AMOUNT OF SHARES AMOUNT AMOUNT  SHARES AMOUNT AMOUNT SHARES  AMOUNT
21 November 2024 - - - 654,675 44,234,786 0.0148 512077 27,821,6% £0.02

- - - 654675 44234786  0.0148 £612077 27,821,694 £0.02

There were no distributions by way of dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Buybacks

No shares were repurchased by the Company during either the year ended 31 December 2024 and 31 Decenber 2023.

NOTE 6 - MATERIAL AGREEMENTS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Investment Management Agreement ("IMA")

The Board is responsible for managing the business affairs of the Company but delegates certain functions to the Investment Manager under an
IMA dated 9 June 2010 (as amended).

On 17 July 2014, the Company, the Manager and the AIFM made certain dlassificatory amendments fo their confractual arrangements for the
purposes of the AIFM Directive. The Sub-Investment Management Agreement was terminated on 17 July 2014 and Neuberger Berman
Investment Advisers LLC (formerly Neuberger Berman Fixed Income LLC), which was the Sub-Investment Manager, was appointed as the
AIFM per the amended and restated IMA dated 17 July 2014. Under this agreement, the AIFM is responsible for risk management and day-to-
day discrefionary management of the Company's Portfolios (including uninvested cash). The risk management and discreionary portfolio
management functions are performed independently of each other within the AIFM sfruciure. The AIFM is not required to, and generally will not,
submit individual investment decisions for approval by the Board. The Manager, Neuberger Berman Europe Limited, was appointed under the
same IMA o provide, amongst other things, certain administrative services to the Company. On 31 Decerrber 2017 the Company entered info an
Amendment Agreement amending the IMA. On the 30 January 2023 the Company entered info an Amendment Agreement amending the IMA for
data protection purposes to note the obligation on the recipient UK investment manager to conply with the new SCCs in fransferring personal data
to the US AIFM.

Per the IMA and in relaion fo the Ordinary Shares and Extended Life Shares, the Manager was enfifed to a management fee, which shall be
accrued daily, and was payable monthly in arrears, ata rate of 0.125% per month of the respective NAVs of the Ordinary Share and Extended
Life Share classes. Soft commissions were not used.

Per the IMA and in relation to the New Global Shares, the Manager was entited to a management fee, which accrued daily, and was payable
monthly in arrears, ata rate of 0.125% per month of the NAV of the New Global Share Class (excluding, unfil such fime as the New Global Share
Class had become 85% invested, any cash balances (or cash equivalents)). The 85% threshold was crossed on 16 June 2015 and from such
date the Company was charged 0.125% per month on the NAV of the New Global Share Class.

Eflecive 18 March 2021, the Investment Manager had waived its entitement to all fees from the Company. Accordingly, there was no
management fees expensed in the year or the preceding financial year nor were any fees outstanding at either 31 December 2024 or 31
December 2023.

Administration, Company Secretarial and Custody Agreements

Eflective 1 March 2015, the Company entered into an Administration and Sub-Administration Agreement with U.S. Bank Global Fund Services
(Guernsey) Limited and U.S. Bank Global Fund Services (Ireland) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of U.S. Bancorp (the "Administration
Agreement’). Under the terms of the Administration Agreement, Sub-Administration services are delegated to U.S. Bank Global Fund Services
(Ireland) Limited (the "Sub-Administrator”). The Sub-Administration Service Level Agreement was amended and approved on 21 February
2018.

The Sub-Administrator is responsible for the day-to-day administration of the Company (including but not limited to the calculation and publication
of the estimated daily NAV).

Under the terms of the Administration Agreement, the Sub-Administrator is entited to a fee of 0.09% for the first 500m of net asset value, 0.08% for
the next500mand 0.07% for any remaining balance, accrued daily and paid monthly in arrears and subject to an annual minimum of 100,000.



Efiective 28 February 2015, the Company entered into a Custody Agreement with U.S. Bank National Association (the "Custodian") to provide
loan administraion and custody services to the Company. Under the terms of the Custody Agreement the Custodian is entifled o an annual fee of
0.025% of net asset value with a minimum annual fee of 25,000.

Eflective 20 June 2017, Suntera (Guernsey) Limited (formerly named Carey Commercial Limited) was appointed the Company Secrefary. The
Company Secrefary is entiied to an annual fee of £76,850 plus fees for ad-hoc board meetings and additional services.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the administration fee expense was 86,775 (31 December 2023: 87,547), the secrefarial fee was
114,400 of which Nil' was in relation o the administraon of e ongoing buyback programme, (31 December 2023: 116,888 1) and the loan
administration and custody fee expense was 28412 (31 December 2023: 30,7431). At 31 December 2024, the administration fee payable is
6,983" (31 December 2023: 5,8521), the secrefarial fee payable is 29,4411 (31 December 2023: 25,4501) and the loan administration and
custody e payable is 9,500 (31 Decermber 2023; 9,088").

1 Amounts are included under Accrued expenses and other liabilities in the Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabiliies and Consolidated Statement of
Operations

Directors' Remuneration and Other Interests

The Directors are related parties and are remunerated for their services at a fee of 45,000 plus £10,000 each per annum ( 60,000 plus £10,000
for the Chairman, 50,000 plus £10,000 for the Chairman of the Audit Commitee). For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Directors' fees and
travel expenses amounted o 192,157 (31 Decenrber 2023: 193,450). Michael J. Holmberg, the non-independent Director, has waived the fees
for his services as a Director. There were no other related interests for the year ended 31 Decerrber 2024.

The Company has not set any requirements or guidelines for Directors to own shares in the Company. The beneficial interests of the Directors
and their connected persons in the Company's shares as at 31 December 2024 are shown in the table below:

NO. OF ORDINARY  NO. OF EXTENDED LIFE NO. OF NEWGLOBAL  TOTAL NO. OF

DIRECTOR SHARES SHARES SHARES SHARES
Jon Hallam - 35468 30,216 65,684
Michee! Holmberg - 15,661 31,590 47,251
Chistopher Legge - - - -
Stephen Vakil - - 16,482 16,482

NOTE 7 - FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

ORDINARY ~ EXTENDEDLIFE =~ NEW GLOBAL ORDINARY  EXTENDED LIFE NEW GLOBAL
SHARES SHARES SHARES SHARES SHARES SHARES
() () £) () () £)
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
ggslfgf\l’-\l\};:N%PEE RATING 31 DECEVMBER 31 DECEVBERR 31 DECEVBER 31 DECEVBER 31 DECEVBER 31 DECEVBER
2024 2024 2024 2023 2023 2023
Net asset value per share at 0.8074 1.0312 06239 0.7730 09728 06640
beginning of the year
Impact of capital distribution
(0.0017) (0.0016) - 0.0069 0.0001
Impact of dividend distribuion
(0.0150) (0.0222) - -
Income from investment
operations !
Net investment income
0.0007 0.0177 0.0291 0.0014 0.0139 0.0214
Net realised and unrealised
(loss)/gain from investments
and foreign exchange
(0.0521) (0.1051) (0.1219) 0.0327 0.0376 (0.0616)
(loss)/gain from investment
operations (0.0514) (0.0874) (0.0928) 0.0341 0.0515 (0.0402)
Net asset value per share at
end of the year? 0.7557 0.9271 0.5073 0.8071 1.0312 0.6239

1V\leighted average number of shares outstanding was used for calculation.
2Each share classes net assefs includes te underlying assets and liabilifies directly atributable to the respective share class.

ORDINARY ~ EXTENDEDLIFE ~ NEW GLOBAL ORDINARY ~EXTENDEDLIFE ~ NEW GLOBAL
SHARES SHARES SHARES SHARES SHARES SHARES
() () £) () () €

JERBDED  YEREDED  YERBOED | YERBDED  YEREDED  YEARBNDED



31 DECEVBER 31 DECEVBER
NAV TOTAL RETURN 23 2024 2024
(6.37%) (10.10%)

NAV Total Retum

31 DECEVBER 31 DECEVBER
2024 2023
(18.69%) 441%

31 DECEVBER
2023

6.00%

31 DECEVBER
2023

(6.04%)

2 NAV Toial Retum s calculated for the Ordinary Shares, Extended Life Shares and New Global Shares only and is calculated based on movement in the NAV and
does not reflect any movement in the market value of the shares. Ashareholder’s refum may vary from these refums based on paricipation in new issues, the timing
of capital fransactions efc. It assumes that all income distributions of the Company, paid by way of dividend, were reinvested, without transaction costs. Class A
shares are not presented as they are not profit participating shares.

3 Anindividual shareholder’s retum may vary from these retums based on the timing of the shareholder's subscriptions.

RATIO TO AVERAGE NET
ASSETS

Net investment income
Total expenses

SHARES
()

YEAR ENDED
31 DECEVBER
2024

0.08%

NEW
ORDINARY EXTENDEDLIFE ~ GLOBAL |  ORDINARY
SHARES  SHARES SHARES

() ) ()

YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED

31DECEVBER 31 DECEVBER 31 DECEVBER

2024 2024 2023

1.73% 491% 0.18%

(1.45%) (2.34%) (1.28%

(1.43%)

NOTE 8 - RECONCILIATION OF NET ASSET VALUE TO PUBLISHED NAV

EXTENDED
LIFE
SHARES

()
YEARENDED

31 DECEVBER
2023

1.40%
(1.38%

NEW GLOBAL
SHARES

£)
YEARENDED
31 DECEMBER
2023

3.24%

2.21%

In preparing the Financial Statements, there were adjustments relating o investment valuations. The impact of these adjustments on the NAV per
Ordinary Share, Extended Life Share and New Global Share is detailed below:

Published net assets as at 31 December
2024

Valuation adjustments

Net assets per Consolidated Financial
Statements

Published net assefs as at 31 December
2023

Valuation adjustments

Net assets per Consolidated Financial
Statements

NOTE 9 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

ORDINARY
SHARE CLASS
NET ASSETS

0

12,237,190
(613,076)

11,624,114

ORDINARY
SHARE CLASS
NET ASSETS

()

12,323,608
91,623

12,415,231

EXTENDED

ORDINARY LIFE EXTENDED LIFE

SHARE CLASS SHARE CLASS ~ SHARE CLASS

NAVPER SHARE ~ NETASSETS NAV PER SHARE

0 0 0]

0795 38372870 09907

(00398)  (2465.260) (0.0636)

07557 35,907,610 09271
EXTENDED

ORDINARY LIFE EXTENDED LIFE

SHARE CLASS SHARE CLASS ~ SHARE CLASS

NAVPER SHARE ~ NETASSETS NAV PER SHARE

0 0 0

08011 45378194 10258

0.0060 236,201 0.0054

0.8071 45614485 1.0312

NEW GLOBAL
SHARE CLASS
NET ASSETS
&)

13,478,756
(732,397)

12,746,359

NEW GLOBAL
SHARE CLASS
NET ASSETS
)

17,358,035

17,358,035

NEW GLOBAL
SHARE CLASS
NAV PER SHARE

£)

05365
(0.02%2)

0.5073

NEW GLOBAL
SHARE CLASS
NAV PER SHARE

£)
0.6239

0.6239

The Directors have evaluated subsequent events up to 29 April 2025, which is the date that the financial statements were available to be issued.

The Company has received a fotal of 5.3 million in respect of the exit of a Surface Transport asset which was held in the NBDX and NBDG share

classes.

NBDG reported a capital distribution and income distribution by way of dividend in March for £1,212,873 and £796,413 respectively. Shareholder
will receive their respectve distributions on 8 April 2025 and 7 April 2025.

There are no further items that require disclosure or adjustment o Financial Statements.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION | Contact Details

Details

Directors

John Hallam (Chairman)
Michael Holmberg



Christopher Legge
Stephen Vakil

All c/o the Company's registered office.

Registered Office

118 2 Floors, Elizabeth House
Les Ruettes Brayes

St Peter Port

Guernsey

GY11EW

Company Secretary
Suntera (Guernsey) Limited (formerly named Carey Commercial Limited)

Alternative Investment Fund Manager
Neuberger Berman Investment Advisers LLC

Manager
Neuberger Berman Europe Limited

Custodian and Principal Bankers
US Bank National Association

Designated Administrator
U.S. Bank Global Fund Services (Guernsey) Limited

Independent Auditor
KPMG Channel Islands Limited

Sub-Administrator
U.S. Bank Global Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Financial Adviser and Corporate Broker
Jefleries International Limited

Solicitors to the Company (as to English law and U.S. securities law)
Herbert Smith Freehills LLP

Advocates to the Company (as to Guernsey law)
Carey Olsen

Registrar
MUFG Corporate Markets (UK) Limited (formerly named Link Market Services (Guernsey) Limited)

UK Transfer Agent

MUFG Pension & Market Services (formerly named Link Group)
Cenfral Square

29 Wellington Street

Leeds

LS14DL

United Kingdom

Shareholders holding shares directy and not through a broker, saving scheme or ISAand have queries in relation to their shareholdings should
contact the Registrar on +44 (0)371 664 0445. (Calls are charged at the standard geographic rate and will vary by provider. Calls outside the
United Kingdom will be charged at the applicable international rate. Lines are open between 9 a.m 1o 5:30 p.m (excluding bank holidays)).
Shareholders can also access their defails via the Registrar's website:

www.signalshares.com.


http://www.signalshares.com

Full contact details of the Company's advisers and Manager can be found on the Company's website

This information is provided by RNS, the news senice of the London Stock Exchange. RNS is approved by the Financial Conduct Authority to act as a
Primary Information Provider in the United Kingdom. Terms and conditions relating to the use and distribution of this information may apply. For further
information, please contact ms@lseg.com or visit www.ms.com.

RNS may use your IP address to confirm compliance with the terms and conditions, to analyse how you engage with the information contained in this
communication, and to share such analysis on an anonymised basis with others as part of our commercial senices. For further information about how
RNS and the London Stock Exchange use the personal data you provide us, please see our Privacy Policy.
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